
Issued Tuesday, 19 September 2023 

  
Scan code to view reports 

 
 
 
Tuesday, 19 September 2023 
 
To All Board Members: 
 
As a Member of the Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board, please treat this as your 
summons to attend a meeting on Wednesday, 27 September 2023 at 10.00 am in the 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Matlock, DE4 3NN 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 

 
James McLaughlin 
Director of Corporate and Customer Services 
 
 
This information is available free of charge in electronic, audio, Braille and 
large print versions, on request. 
 

For assistance in understanding or reading this document or specific 
information about this Agenda or on the “Public Participation” initiative please 
call the Committee Team on 01629 761133 or email 
committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Please advise the Democratic Services Team on 01629 761133 or email 
committee@derbyshire.gov.uk of any apologies for absence. 
 
2. CONFIRMATION OF CHAIR AND APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR OF THE 

PROGRAMME BOARD  
 
To confirm the appointment of Councillor David Hughes as Chair of the Programme Board 
and to propose that a Member of the Programme Board be appointed Vice-Chair. 
 
3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

1

mailto:committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
mailto:committee@derbyshire.gov.uk


 

To enable members of the public to ask questions, express views or present petitions, IF 
NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN, (by telephone, in writing or by email) BY NO LATER THAN 
12 NOON OF THE WORKING DAY PRECEDING THE MEETING. As per Procedural 
Rule 14.4 at any one meeting no person may submit more than 3 questions and no more 
than 1 such question may be asked on behalf of one organisation. 
 
4. INTERESTS  
 
Members of the Programme Board are required to declare the existence and nature of any 
interests they may have in subsequent agenda items in accordance with the District 
Council’s Code of Conduct. Those interests are matters that relate to money or that which 
can be valued in money, affecting the Member, their partner, extended family and close 
friends. Interests that become apparent at a later stage in the proceedings may be 
declared at the time. 
 
5. ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME BOARD UPDATE (Pages 3 - 78) 
 
This report summarises activity to progress the Ashbourne Reborn Programme, highlights 
key programme risks and sets out next steps. 
 
6. ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME - ADDITIONAL COMMUNICATIONS AND 

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT CAPACITY (Pages 79 - 86) 
 
This report asks Members of the Programme Board to consider the establishment of an 
additional fixed term post of Communications Officer within the District Council’s 
Communications and Marketing Team to deliver the Communications and Engagement 
Plan for the Ashbourne Reborn programme. The report also seeks Board Member 
endorsement of the immediate approach taken to securing short term interim capacity. 
 
 
Members of the Programme Board – Councillor David Hughes (Chair), Councillor Peter 
Dobbs, Councillor Steve Flitter, Councillor Stuart Lees, Sarah Dines MP, Councillor Simon 
Spencer (Derbyshire County Council), Councillor Steve Bull (Derbyshire County Council), 
Tony Walker (Ashbourne Methodist Church), Anne Wright (Ashbourne Town Team), Sue 
Bridgett (Ashcom), Councillor Anthony Bates (Ashbourne Town Council). 
 
NOTE 
 
For further information about this Agenda or on “Public Participation” call 01629 761133 or 
email committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 

2

mailto:committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


1 
 

 

                                                            
OPEN REPORT 

ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME BOARD 
 
Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board – 27 September 2023 
 
ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 
Report of the Director of Regeneration and Policy 
 
Report Author and Contact Details 
Laura Simpson, Principal Regeneration Officer 
01629 761146 or laura.simpson@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 
Wards Affected 
Ashbourne North and South 
 
Report Summary 
The report summarises activity to progress the Ashbourne Reborn Programme, 
highlights key programme risks and sets out next steps. 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That activity and progress to date be received and noted. 
 

2. That the Procurement Strategy for the Highways and Public Realm Project be 
received and noted. 
 

3. That delivery partner Project Boards’ Terms of Reference are requested for 
approval by the Programme Board in accordance with Governance 
requirements. 
 

4. That Appendix 3 – Draft Protocol for Escalating Ashbourne Reborn Decisions 
be received and agreed. 
 

5. That the highlighted Programme risks and associated mitigation measures are 
received and noted. 
 

6. That reporting and monitoring requirements are received and noted. 
 
List of Appendices 
Appendix 1 Governance Structure Chart  
Appendix 2 Programme Board Terms of Reference 
Appendix 3 Draft Protocol for Escalating Ashbourne Reborn Decisions 
Appendix 4 Schedule of Activity to Date 
Appendix 5 Minutes of DCC Project Control Board 05/09/23 
Appendix 6 Minutes of Ashbourne Methodist Church Project Board 05/09/23 
Appendix 7  Stage 3 Designs 

3

Agenda Item 5

mailto:laura.simpson@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


2 
 

Appendix 8 Highways and Public Realm Procurement Strategy  
Appendix 9 Programme and Project Risks 
Appendix 10 Delivery Plan Milestones 
Appendix 11 Funding Profile 
 
Background Papers 
Council Report 27 July 2023 
Ashbourne Reborn Programme - Additional Communications and Stakeholder 
Engagement Capacity 27 September 2023 
 
Consideration of report by Council or other committee 
No 
 
Council Approval Required 
No 
 
Exempt from Press or Public 
No 
 

4



3 
 

ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Ashbourne Reborn is a £15.22m programme aimed at transforming 

Ashbourne town centre through significant improvements to highways and 
public realm and the development of the Link Community Hub. The 
programme is principally funded by the UK Government through the 
Levelling Up Fund. The initial Levelling Up Fund capital grant award in 
January 2023 was £13,373,509. A further grant of £70,000 was awarded in 
July 2023 to provide revenue capacity support. 

 
1.2 As a reminder, the programme comprises the following projects: 
 

Project 1: Public Realm & Highways Improvements - £8.804m 
 
This project will deliver a series of transformed public spaces including the 
Market Place, Victoria Square, Millennium Square and Shrovetide Walk.  
Connections between these spaces will also be improved. Highways 
improvements will be undertaken along Compton, Dig Street and St John 
Street to create a better pedestrian experience, reducing the impact of 
vehicles and improving safety.   
 
This project is led by Derbyshire County Council.  
 
Project 2: Link Community Hub - £6.418m 
 
The project aims to transform the Methodist Church into a multi-purpose 
community space, enhancing the town centre offer, and providing a venue 
that will help drive greater footfall. 
 
This project is led by Ashbourne Methodist Church. 
 

1.3  Derbyshire Dales District Council is the Accountable Body for Ashbourne 
 Reborn.  This means that, although projects are being delivered by other 
 delivery partners the Council has responsibility for, inter alia: 
 

• all financial matters (including but not limited to managing the 
programme budget, paying delivery partners and claiming funding from 
the Government to cover such payments) 

• all procurement matters (including but not limited to appointment, 
contracts and purchases made by delivery partners) 

• ensuring outputs and outcomes are achieved on time and to budget 
• other compliance matters (including but not limited to equalities duties 

and subsidy control) 
• discharging this accountability by monitoring, assuring, reporting and 

auditing to the Government’s satisfaction. 
 
1.4 On 27 July 2023 the District Council approved revised governance 

arrangements for Ashbourne Reborn, including increased Member 
involvement from both the District Council and County Council at 
Programme Board level.  Each project board retains autonomy to make 
decisions to deliver their respective projects within the approved scope, 
timescales, budget and project deliverables (including but not limited to 
outputs and outcomes within the approved LUF bid).  This structure is 

5



4 
 

intended to enable project boards, comprising the requisite knowledge and 
delivery experience, to get on with delivering projects without recourse to 
the Programme Board for delivery / operational decisions.  The approved 
Governance Structure Chart is provided in Appendix 1. 

 
1.5  Matters that could have a significant impact on the programme, potentially 

resulting in a change to the approved bid / Memorandum of Understanding 
between the District Council and the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) in terms of deliverables, timescales, cost, outputs / 
outcomes and risk should be matters for decision by the strategic Programme 
Board and are required to be escalated by Project Boards (see below). 

 
2. Key Issues 
 
 Governance 
 
2.1 Ashbourne Reborn Project Boards held their first official meetings in May 

2023.  Whilst a framework was established for Terms of References, these 
are required to be finalised with reference to the revised governance 
arrangements and provided to the Programme Board as soon as possible 
for approval, as approved by Council on 27 July 2023. 
 

2.2 Project Board Terms of Reference should reflect and complement those of 
the strategic Programme Board, provided in Appendix 2.  Clear delegations and 
tolerances for each project will be set in order that each project board can make 
project decisions within those limits whilst referring matters outside those limits 
to the strategic Programme Board.  Those limits will be set by the Programme 
Board informed by the view of each Project Board.  For example: 
 

• Project Board decision: a change to the project design (for example in 
response to local feedback) which doesn’t impact the approved project 
deliverables, outputs or outcomes. 

• Programme Board decision: the potential de-scoping of a project 
element (for example to meet the available budget) which would result 
in a reduction to the project deliverables including but not limited to 
outputs and outcomes of the programme agreed with DLUHC. 
 

2.3 A draft protocol for escalating decisions (where appropriate) is attached for 
consideration as Appendix 3. 
 

2.4 Project Board Terms of Reference must include (but not be limited to) the 
following: 
 

• Purpose and remit, with reference to the interaction with the strategic 
Programme Board and internal officer group. 

• Membership including the role of stakeholders. 
• Meeting cycles, quoracy, decision making, records of decisions and 

declarations of interest. 
• Reporting, including Government requirements (such as risk 

management, project milestones, funding profile and progress against 
outputs and outcomes) and ensuring appropriate communication and 

6



5 
 

escalation within the programme structures and back to the respective 
delivery partner organisations. 

• Contract management and the role of appointed contractors. 
• The project deliverables as defined by the Accountable Body with 

reference to the approved Bid. 
• A requirement to deliver projects on time, within budget, and according 

to the approved scope. 
• How the Project Board will review its role and terms of reference. 

 Project Progress, Procurement and Risks: 

2.5 Over recent months, partners have worked collaboratively to progress both 
projects.  A schedule of activity to date is provided in Appendix 4.  Brief 
project-based updates are set out below, with further detail provided in 
Appendix 5 - Minutes of the September 2023 Project Board Meetings 
Minutes of Derbyshire County Council Project Control Board 05/09/23, and 
Appendix 6 - Minutes of Ashbourne Methodist Church Project Board 
05/09/23 
 

2.6 The DCC-led Highways and Public Realm Project has reached the end of 
the RIBA Stage 3 design package, with associated plans provided in 
Appendix 7.  These designs were informed by extensive stakeholder and 
public consultation, including two public engagement sessions in the 
Methodist Church Hall in July.  These sessions were well attended and 
feedback from the engagement is detailed in the Stakeholder and Public 
Engagement Report, which will be published on the Ashbourne Reborn 
webpage following approval by the Highways and Public Realm Project 
Control Board.  A key matter considered by the Project Control Board was 
the extent of short-stay parking provision, incorporating disabled provision, 
in and around the Market Place.  Following a positive discussion, a way 
forward was agreed by all partners as per the plans.   
 

2.7 The updated designs have also informed the submission for Listed Building 
Consent for work on the Market Place and Victoria Square.  Following the 
21 day statutory consultation period, it is anticipated that this will be 
considered at Planning Committee on 14th November. 
 

2.8 The project will now progress to RIBA Stage 4 design, incorporating existing 
designs for Millennium Square and Shrovetide Walk that benefit from 
existing planning consents. 
 

2.9 The Ashbourne Reborn Highways and Public Realm Procurement Strategy 
has been finalised in accordance with rules, regulations and LUF 
requirements following consultation with procurement colleagues at both 
councils and was agreed at the September meeting of the Highways and 
Public Realm Project Control Board.  This is provided in Appendix 8 for the 
Programme Board to receive and note.  

 
2.10 Risk workshops were held with the Highways and Public Realm Project 

Control Board in August to inform an updated risk register.  The top ten risks 
are set out in Appendix 9, with the highest scored risks at that time being 

7



6 
 

the impact of traffic management restrictions on Ashbourne and the phasing 
of construction to minimise disruption.  In addition, there are risks around 
the timeframe that Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) are taking to process 
due to capacity challenges at DCC.  These will be required to support 
delivery of the project and usually require a six to nine month process, 
although temporary TROs can be quicker.  To note, permanent TROs at 
DCC are currently taking twelve to eighteen months, which would undermine 
delivery of the project.  Associated mitigation will be discussed at the next 
Highways and Public Realm Project Control Board.  
 

2.11 The Link Community Hub Project is progressing at pace, with the 
appointment of the full Link Community Hub Design Team (architect, 
structural and services engineers, landscape architect etc.).  RIBA Stage 3 
design is complete and RIBA Stage 4 detailed design work is ongoing.  All 
required surveys and engineers inspections of the site condition, including 
trial pits, are well progressed or complete.  
 

2.12 Planning and Listed Building Consent Applications are being finalised for 
submission for the full scope of the LUF funded scheme this Autumn 
following completion of the final required bat survey.  While the need for 
additional bat surveys has caused some delay to submission of the planning 
applications, this does not pose a significant risk to delivery timeframes. 
 

2.13 Ashbourne Methodist Church Partners also actively supported and took part 
in the public engagement in July, making the Methodist Church Hall 
available to host the events, providing information about the Link 
Community Hub Project and attending the events to answer questions from 
the public and stakeholders.  This helped to provide a full overview of the 
Ashbourne Reborn Programme. 
 

2.14 A Risk Workshop will be undertaken to update the risk register for the Link 
Community Hub Project in time to inform a review of the Strategic 
Programme Risk Register for reporting in the October Quarterly Monitoring 
Return to Government.  Highest scored risks highlighted currently include 
the potential outcome from intrusive surveys e.g. building fabric / structure, 
worse than anticipated and unforeseen costs.  

 
2.15 The Procurement Strategy for the construction contract for the Link 

Community Hub has been drafted and will be provided to the Programme 
Board when in final form.  Procurement to date has reflected procurements 
rules, regulations and LUF requirements and has benefitted from District 
Council procurement advice. 
 

2.16 The next stage for both projects is to progress detailed design and also to 
conduct contractor procurement, with early contractor involvement at the 
earliest opportunity to provide greater cost certainty, inform detailed design 
and help to mitigate project risks. 
 

2.17 Following completion of Stage 3 design, both Project Boards have 
commissioned revised cost plans for completion end September / early 

8



7 
 

October.  This will help establish the extent of emerging cost challenges – 
both projects having seen increasing costs to date – and will inform an 
updated funding profile for the October Quarterly Monitoring return to 
Government.  Taking into account the unexpectedly high rate of inflation 
since the bid, other market pressures, and early indications, it is likely that 
value engineering and some re-scoping will need to be considered to remain 
within budget.  It is intended that the outcomes and implications of the cost 
plan work will be considered at the October Project Board and Programme 
Board meetings. 

 
2.18 After reviewing available capacity and the resource requirements to 

increase the frequency of communications, especially prior to and through 
the construction period, it is considered that the establishment of an 
additional, dedicated communications and engagement resource is 
necessary to support effective delivery of the programme.  This is the 
subject of a separate report for consideration by the Programme Board. 
 
Programme Monitoring 
 

2.19 Quarterly monitoring returns are required to be provided to the Department 
of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities on the following timetable: 
 

Reporting Period:  Commission date:  Return date:  Reporting:  
1 January 2023 to  
31 March 2023  

3 April 2023  28 April 2023  6 Monthly  
 

1 April 2023 to  
30 June 2023  

3 July 2023  28 July 2023  Quarterly  
 

1 July 2023 to  
30 September 2023  

2 October 2023  27 October 2023  6 Monthly  
 

1 October 2023 to  
31 December 2023  

8 January 2024  2 February 2024  Quarterly  
  

1 January 2024 to  
31 March 2024  

1 April 2024  26 April 2024  6 Monthly  
 

1 April 2024 to  
30 June 2024  

1 July 2024  26 July 2024  Quarterly  
 

1 July 2024 to  
30 September 2024  

7 October 2024  1 November 2024  6 Monthly  
 

1 October 2024 to  
31 December 2024  

6 January 2025  31 January 2025  Quarterly  
 

1 January 2025 to  
31 March 2025  

7 April 2025  2 May 2025  6 Monthly  
  

Further reporting dates to be confirmed by DLUHC 
 

2.20 The monitoring returns include updates on project progress, delivery plans, 
funding profiles, and risks.  In the six-monthly reports, updates must also be 
provided on measurable outputs and outcomes.  Grant payments are made 
in January and July (approximately) and the amount provided is informed 
by the progress and expenditure reported in the previous quarterly return.  
Information collated for future returns will inform Programme Board papers.  
The next quarterly monitoring return is scheduled for 27 October and a 
summary will be shared at the next Programme Board meeting on 26 
October. 

 

9



8 
 

3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
 

Not applicable. 
 
4. Consultation 
 
4.1 Ashbourne Reborn benefits from a Communications and Engagement Plan, 

and a Communications Group involving key project partners also convenes 
at least every six weeks to support regular and responsive communications 
and the delivery of the stakeholder engagement plan. 
 

4.2 Public engagement events were held on 26 and 29 July at Ashbourne 
Methodist Church and a Stakeholder and Public Engagement Report has 
been compiled by AECOM on behalf of the Highways and Public Realm 
Project Control Board.  This will be made available on the DDDC Ashbourne 
Reborn webpage following approval by the Project Board. 
 

4.3 As set out in section 2.17, the need for additional Communications resource 
to support ongoing communications and consultation is the subject of a 
separate report for consideration by the Programme Board. 

 
5. Timetable for Implementation 
 
5.1 Specific milestones required for reporting to Government are set out in 

Appendix 10, with details of the last quarterly monitoring return for both 
projects.  In headline terms the initial project plan indicates that detailed 
scheme designs (RIBA Stage 4) are anticipated to be completed by the end 
of 2023, with contractor procurement by Spring 2024 and construction on 
the ground taking place in 2024 and early 2025. 
  

5.2 Notwithstanding the significant work progressed ‘at risk’ prior to 
announcement of the LUF award, the scale of the programme, timescale for 
implementation, cost challenges and breadth of partners involved has 
inevitably resulted in some delay.  

 
5.3 Mobilising the programme has required: additional resourcing within the 

District Council’s Regeneration and Policy service and external consultancy 
support; input from teams across the District Council (Finance, Audit, Legal, 
Committee section, Communications, Estates, Parking); preparation of 
detailed funding agreements with Delivery Partners for each project; and the 
procurement by Delivery Partners of external consultants to provide project 
management services and develop project designs (within the available LUF 
budget) alongside programme management fees.  Whilst the detail involved 
and negotiations required impacted the start of the design stage of the 
programme, as indicated above, design work has progressed.  Completion 
of the Grant Funding Agreement for the Highways and Public Realm project 
is necessary to progress the next stage of design work and presents a risk 
to the programme (see Section 9).  While there have been some initial 
delays, programme delivery currently remains on track for defrayal of the 
LUF grant within the amended timeframes (see section 7), subject to formal 
agreement with DLUHC of the date for completion within the 2025/26 
financial year. 

 
6. Policy Implications 

10



9 
 

 
6.1 Ashbourne Reborn is one of the District Council’s current Corporate Plan 

priorities within the ‘prosperity’ theme.  The LUF proposals are closely linked 
to the Council’s Economic Recovery Plan and Economic Plan.  They support 
the Corporate Plan priority pf ‘Prosperity’.  In particular, the proposals 
directly contribute to the corporate target area: Promote investment to 
stimulate the economy of our market towns. 

 
7. Financial and Resource Implications 

 
7.1 Project cost plans are currently under review by both Project Boards, as set 

out in Section 2.16.  Any cost challenges highlighted by this work will be 
reviewed at Project Board level before reporting to Programme Board.  Early 
indications are that costs have risen considerably since the LUF bid, with 
much higher than predicted levels of inflation, which is likely to contribute to 
the need for value engineering, prioritisation and, as a last resort, potential 
de-scoping activities to remain within budget.  Alongside rising construction 
costs and costs of materials, project fees have also increased from the 
original estimates prepared by the consultant bid team.  Any resultant 
recommendations that could have direct or cumulative implications for 
commitments made to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities will be escalated to the Programme Board for consideration. 

 
7.2 The requirement to manage costs within the available LUF budget is a key 

element within the Grant Funding Agreements, and District Council officers 
continue to work closely with delivery partners to manage financial 
challenges and risks as the programme develops. In parallel to the grant 
funding agreement negotiations with DCC, to ensure progress can be 
maintained, a revised letter of intent from DDDC is proposed to enable 
funding of appropriate elements of design work. Any such interim 
arrangement will be subject to appropriate conditions and the provision of 
related evidence prior to agreement of associated payments. 

 
7.3 Current funding profiles are provided in Appendix 11.  Table 1 shows the 

figures within the current Memorandum of Understanding with Government.  
However, these figures are not yet adjusted to account for the three-month 
delay in the funding announcement.  Subsequent discussions with officers 
from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities indicated 
that project completion by July 2025 to reflect this delay, beyond the original 
deadline of March 2025, was likely to be within acceptable thresholds and 
would not require a formal Project Adjustment Request.  Further to this, the 
July Quarterly Monitoring return was requested from all local authorities to 
include a realistic representation of likely expenditure in 2025/26 within the 
funding profile.  This did not constitute a formal change request but was to 
inform further discussion.  It is proposed to seek agreement of a revised 
completion date with DLUHC alongside submission of the October 
monitoring report.  Table 2 in Appendix 11 reflects an indicative funding 
profile provided in response to the request for a realistic approach.  
However, it will be reviewed and revised to reflect the updated cost plans 
and associated project spend profiles in time for the October Monitoring 
Report.  A meeting is planned with Government Officers in early October to 
discuss progress on Ashbourne Reborn and seek feedback to inform the 
next monitoring return. 
 

11



10 
 

7.4 Subsequent reports to the Programme Board will include more detailed 
updates on project and programme expenditure, with decisions or 
recommendations that have implications for the Accountable Body 
escalated to Community and Environment Committee. 

 
8. Procurement Implications 
 
8.1 As set out in Section 2, a Procurement Strategy has been collated for the 

Highways and Public Realm Project and provided to Programme Board 
following approval at the Highways and Public Realm Project Board.  A draft 
Procurement Strategy is being finalised for the Link Community Hub and 
will be provided to the Programme Board following approval at the Link 
Community Hub Project Board 

 
9. Legal Advice and Implications 
 
9.1 Grant Funding Agreements are substantively progressed, enabled through 

external and internal legal support, with early work underpinned by a letter 
of intent issued to Derbyshire County Council and Heads of Terms agreed 
with Ashbourne Methodist Church.  The legal risk is assessed as medium.  
Completion of the Grant Funding Agreements is a high priority and is 
reflected in the strategic programme risk register and project level risk 
registers. 

 
9.2 The Grant Funding Agreement for the Link Community Hub is complete and 

was provided to Ashbourne Methodist Church partners in August for final 
review.  Requests for an additional review by the central Methodist Church 
has extended the timeframe to final amendments and signing but all 
partners are working to completion before the end of September to enable 
payment of grant funding within quarter 2. 
 

9.3 The Grant Funding Agreement for the Highways and Public Realm Project 
has benefitted from a series of officer meetings and associated drafts.  
Completion of the Grant Funding Agreement is critical path task and 
therefore delay would impact on the project programme.  The key issue to 
resolve is the approach to risk, in particular from a potential cost-overrun 
e.g. from an unforeseen event.  A verbal update will be provided at the 
meeting on the latest position. 

 
10. Equalities Implications 
 
10.1 None at this stage, but equalities remain an important consideration for 

detailed design.  An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) was prepared for the 
Levelling Up Fund bid and was submitted to the C&E meeting on 29th June 
2022.  A further equalities assessment will be required on final scheme 
proposals to assess the implications of any significant changes to the 
project. 

 
 
11. Climate Change Implications 
 
11.1 None at this stage, but Climate Change Implications remain an important 

consideration for detailed design.  A Climate Change Impact Assessment 
was prepared for the Levelling Up Fund bid and was submitted to the C&E 

12



11 
 

meeting on 29th June 2022.  A further climate change assessment may be 
required on final scheme proposals to assess the implications of any 
significant changes to the project. 
 

11.2 In terms of other environmental considerations, there are potential 
synergies between the traffic management element of Ashbourne Reborn 
and the air quality considerations for the area.  The Ashbourne Reborn 
Highways and Public Realm Design Team have been requested to support 
compatibility between the two work areas, with further consideration of any 
related opportunities at officer level. 

 
 
11.  Risk Management 
 
11.3 Project level risks have been highlighted within the report in section 2.  A 

review of the Strategic Risk Register will be provided for the next 
Programme Board meeting, taking into account updates from the project risk 
workshops.  The current main strategic risks for the programme, as provided 
in the July 23 Quarterly Monitoring Report are contained within Appendix 9. 

 
11.4 Current programme level risks reflect: 

 
• Early cost challenges, consistent with the national picture.  Proposed 

mitigation at this stage includes working with delivery partners to 
reduce fee expenditure (where possible), early contractor 
engagement and value engineering 

• Stakeholder expectations.  Proposed mitigation at this stage includes 
early stakeholder engagement and regular communications, 
expectation management and quality control.  

• Outstanding funding agreements as set out in Section 9 of this report. 
Mitigation includes ongoing collaboration, an agreed schedule of 
meetings to finalise agreements, and letters of intent to allow initial 
work at risk. 

• Programme and Resources.  Delivery timeframes are challenging 
and the programme is resource-intensive at all levels.  Ongoing 
consideration of resources is required, including any related 
challenges facing delivery partners.  As set out in section 7 of this 
report, work is ongoing to finalise and agree with Government the 
completion date of the Ashbourne Reborn Programme within 
2025/26.  

 
 
11.2 These risks will continue to be monitored actively, including to enable 

required quarterly reporting to Government on Ashbourne Reborn.  
 

Report Authorisation 
 
Approvals obtained from:-  
 

 Named Officer Date 
Chief Executive 

 
Paul Wilson 19/09/2023 

Director of Resources/ S.151 Officer Karen Henriksen 19/09/2023 

13



12 
 

 Named Officer Date 
(or Financial Services Manager) 
Monitoring Officer 
(or Legal Services Manager) 
 

Kerry France  19/09/2023 

 
 
 

14



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Appendix 1 – Ashbourne Reborn Governance Structure 

 

 
 

  

 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 2 
 

ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME BOARD 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
1. Context 
 
1.1 Ashbourne Reborn is a Levelling Up Funded programme of interventions to 

transform Ashbourne Town Centre.  The programme is led by Derbyshire 
Dales District Council through collaborative working with local partners who 
brought forward project ideas, identified opportunities and raised match-
funding for the project.  The Ashbourne Reborn programme comprises two 
projects: (1) Highways and Public Realm (Derbyshire County Council acts 
as Delivery Partner for this project); and (2) Link Community Hub 
(Ashbourne Methodist Church acts as Delivery Partner for this project).  
 

1.2 A Programme Board made up of Derbyshire Dales District Council (as the 
Accountable Body) with Derbyshire County Council and Ashbourne 
Methodist Church, Ashbourne Town Team and the involvement of other key 
local partners supporting the project, has been established to oversee the 
delivery of intended outcomes.  The purpose of the Programme Board is to 
provide a framework that will enable local authorities and partners to work 
collaboratively and provide political and strategic leadership, as well 
constructively supporting and challenging the Delivery Partners to deliver 
on time and within their allocated budgets.  
 

1.3 The Programme Board is not a legal entity, and its role is advisory. Its 
purpose is to advocate for Ashbourne Reborn and support the Accountable 
Body to ensure the aims of the programme are delivered on time and within 
budget. 
 

1.4 The Programme Board represents a variety of interests and has the skills 
and expertise to support the development and delivery of the £15m 
Ashbourne Reborn programme.  Observers include staff from Derbyshire 
Dales District Council providing a Programme Office and Project 
Management function, on behalf of the Accountable Body. 
 

1.5 These terms of reference set out the membership and responsibilities of the 
Programme Board to oversee and provide strategic direction on the delivery 
of Ashbourne Reborn.  

 
2. Membership of the Programme Board 
 
2.1 Derbyshire Dales District Council shall appoint 4 councillors as members of 

the Programme Board.  
 
2.2 Derbyshire County Council shall appoint 2 councillors to be a member of the 

Programme Board.   

17



 

 
2.3 One representative from each of the following will be appointed to serve as 

Members of the Programme Board: 
 

• Member of Parliament for Derbyshire Dales 
• AshCom 
• Ashbourne Methodist Church (Chair of Link Community Hub) 
• Ashbourne Town Council 
• Ashbourne Town Team (Chair of Ashbourne Town Team) 

 
2.4 Applications for new Programme Board Members shall be supported by at least 

3 Programme Board members before a report from the Programme Manager 
acting on behalf of the Accountable Body is considered by the full Programme 
Board. 

 
2.5 A Programme Board Member shall cease to be a member of the Ashbourne 

Reborn Programme Board in the following circumstances;  
 

a) Such a Member gives written notice to the Chair of their notice of 
resignation. 

b) Such Member’s death. 
c) Such Member’s bankruptcy making of any arrangement or composition 

with their creditors, or liquidation, or in the case of an organisation, 
winding up, liquidation, dissolution or administration or anything 
analogous to any of the foregoing occurring in relation to a Member in 
any jurisdiction. 

d) Such Member is removed from membership by a resolution of the 
Programme Board that it is in the best interests of the Programme Board 
that the membership is terminated. 

 
2.6 Members may be removed from the Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board as 

set out in Schedule 1 (Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board Code of Conduct). 
Any Member removed for conduct-related reasons may not be reappointed. 
 

2.7 In exceptional circumstances Members may send a suitable substitute to 
represent their organisation in their absence.  This should be agreed with the 
Chair in advance of the meeting.  The substitute must adhere to all the 
requirements as laid out in the agreed Terms of Reference.  

 
2.8 Derbyshire Dales District Council may invite DLUHC (or its successor 

Department/Ministry) to send a representative to attend Board meetings as an 
observer. 

 
3  Chairing the Programme Board 
 
3.1 The Programme Board will be chaired by a Member of Derbyshire Dales 

District Council, as the Accountable Body for the project.  The Vice-Chair of 
the Programme Board will be a Member of Derbyshire County Council.  

 

18



 

3.2 The Chair will play a key role in facilitating collaboration between partners and 
supporting the Accountable Body to ensure the aims of the Ashbourne Reborn 
are delivered on time and within budget. 

 
3.3 The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Programme Board will cease to hold such 

office when they cease to be a Member of the Programme Board or a 
Member of the authorities that have appointed them.  

 
4. Responsibilities 
 
4.1 The following responsibilities are allocated to the Programme Board: 
 

(a) To maintain strategic oversight of the Ashbourne Reborn projects 
(b) To provide support and advice to the Accountable Body 
(c) To consider updates on delivery, performance and risk from both 

Delivery Partners at each meeting of the Programme Board 
(d) To ensure that the Delivery Partners deliver the projects on time and 

within their allocated budgets. 
(e) To manage strategic risks and escalated project risks, taking ownership 

of the programme risk register, reviewing updates from Delivery Partners 
and agreeing mitigation measures as necessary 

(f) To advise the Accountable Body on strategic decisions including those 
escalated by Delivery Partners, e.g. where projects exceed a set 
tolerance regarding spend, slippage, outputs etc.  This could include 
decisions on scope change/reduction where there is a need to re-
prioritise due to cost or deliverability.  It could also include advising on 
the allocation of project and programme management resources.  
Recommendations will be escalated where required to Derbyshire Dales 
District Council’s Community and Environment Committee for 
consideration and formal approval as the Accountable Body. 

(g) To have an overview of governance and assurance, with a watching brief 
on the overall governance and a specific responsibility to support the 
Accountable Body’s section 151 officer in her role providing the 
Government with regular assurance 

(h) To make representation to Government departments for advice and 
assistance as necessary 

(i) To ensure the necessary liaison arrangements are in place to 
maximise resources across Delivery Partners, and to work 
collaboratively to deliver the Ashbourne Reborn programme. 

(j) To ensure that Delivery Partners consider the views of the community 
through community engagement, consultation and communication. 

(k) To agree, implement and monitor the communications & engagement 
plan and receive regular reports from the Communications and 
Engagement Group; supporting them as advocates for the programme 
and playing an active role in managing stakeholder issues, particularly 
during challenging delivery periods (e.g. disruption to town centre).  

 
 
 
 

19



 

5. Reports   
 
5.1 The Board will be responsible for making sure that reporting is in line with the 

Government’s Assurance and Performance Management Framework and will 
seek assurances from the Delivery Partners and Programme Manager to this 
effect.  

 
5.2 The Board will receive monthly reports from each Delivery Partner.  This will 

provide a mechanism through which issues and risks can be formally escalated 
from each Delivery Partner if required.  The Programme Board will also maintain 
oversight of the reporting returns to central government made by the 
Accountable Body.  

 
5.3 The Board will ensure that reporting is clear, accurate and informative.  It will 

provide feedback to the Programme Manager and Delivery Partners in order to 
drive continuous improvement in project management and to ensure that 
highlights and escalations are taking place at the appropriate time and level.   

 
5.4 The Board may wish to commission more in-depth reviews of projects where it 

has concerns or seeks additional assurance.  This should be done in 
collaboration with the relevant Delivery Partner and with consideration to the 
available resources. 

 
6. Professional and Administrative Support 
 
6.1 Derbyshire Dales District Council is the Accountable Body for Ashbourne 

Reborn.  As the Accountable Body, the Council will utilise existing rules as 
outlined within the Council’s Constitution throughout the life of the 
programme, and the Council’s Statutory Officers will play a key role in 
ensuring compliance.  

 
6.2 Administrative support to the Programme Board will be provided by 

Derbyshire Dales District Council’s Democratic Services team. 
 
7. Quorum 
 
7.1 The quorum for meetings of the Programme Board will be a half or 4 voting 

members, whichever is the greater and must include representation from 
Derbyshire Dales District Council and the two Delivery Partners.  Members can 
send a nominated substitute but only one representative per organisation may 
be in attendance unless by agreement with the Chair, for example for the 
purposes of presenting a specialist agenda item.  In these circumstances, the 
additional guest representative would not have voting rights.  Derbyshire Dales 
District Council and Derbyshire County Council may have a number of 
supporting officers in attendance.  

 
7.2 If there is no quorum at the published start time for the meeting, the meeting 

can proceed but no substantive decisions will be binding until they have 
received formal approval at the next quorate Programme Board meeting. 

 

20



 

7.3 No decisions taken by the Programme Board will be binding upon individual 
partner organisations – each organisation will be subject to their normal 
governance processes and expected to seek appropriate authority where 
relevant, as a result of any decisions taken by the Programme Board.  

 
7.4 The Programme Board shall delegate to the Chair of the Programme Board the 

authority to make urgent decisions, having consulted by way of email with 
Programme Board members, where a Programme Board meeting cannot be 
convened in a timely manner to consider a matter.  The decision shall be 
published as soon as practically possible once taken. 

 
8. Frequency of Meetings 
 
7.1 Meeting of the Programme Board will take place monthly, though this may 

decrease (or increase) in frequency as the programme develops and according 
to need.  The frequency of meetings can be varied following a discussion 
and vote of the Board, at the discretion of the Chair. 

 
7.2 The meetings will be held after the cycle of Delivery Partner project meetings, 

to ensure that the Programme Board has the latest information available on 
each project, and prior to the government deadlines for reporting returns, in 
order that the Board can provide formal comments before submission. 
 

7.3 Formal meetings of the Programme Board will take place in public where all 
formal decisions of the Programme Board will be taken. 
 

7.4 Informal meetings of the Programme Board may take place from time to time.  
These will be in private and not open to the public.  Other persons and 
external advisers may be invited to attend all or part of any meeting as and 
when appropriate as observers and shall be entitled to speak at the meeting 
with the prior permission of the Chair but shall not be entitled to vote. 
 

7.5 Meetings will be a mixture of on-line and in-person.  The latter will take place 
mainly in Matlock but the Board will also aim to meet in Ashbourne at intervals 
by agreement.   

 
9. Conduct 
 
9.1 Members will act in accordance with the Ashbourne Reborn Programme 

Board Code of Conduct (as seen in schedule 1). 
 
9.2 Members who are elected Members of Derbyshire Dales District Council 

and Derbyshire County Council will also be subject to the Code of Conduct 
for Councillors in operation at those local authorities.  

 
10 Notice and Publication of Agenda Papers 
 
10.1 At least five clear working days before a formal meeting, a copy of the 

agenda and associated papers will be sent electronically to every member 
of the Programme Board.  The agenda will give the date, time and place of 

21



 

each meeting and specify the business to be transacted and will be 
accompanied by such details as are available. 

 
11. Voting 
 
11.1 Programme Board members commit to seek, where possible, to operate on 

the basis of consensus. 
 
11.2 Should it not be possible in a specific instance to find a consensus, the 

decision will be made on the basis of a simple majority.  The Chair will have 
the casting vote. 

 
11.3 Matters which are the responsibility of the Accountable Body will be 

reserved to Derbyshire Dales District Council.  This includes taking 
responsibility for the appropriate defrayal of all LUF funding.  

 
11.4 The Board may not make decisions that compromise the role of Derbyshire 

Dales District Council as Accountable Body.  Should the Board endeavour to 
do so, such a decision will be deemed invalid and outside the Terms of 
Reference of the Board.  Derbyshire Dales District Council would not be bound 
by any such invalid decisions of the Board.   

 
12. Minutes 
 
12.1 The Chair will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next suitable 

meeting.  The Chair will move that the minutes of the previous meeting be 
signed as a correct record. 

 
12.2 The minutes will be accompanied by a list of agreed action points, which 

may be discussed in considering the minutes of the previous meeting should 
they not be specifically listed as items on the agenda for the meeting. 

 
12.3 Minutes of Programme Board meetings will be published on Derbyshire 

Dales District Council’s website.  
 
13. General Matters 
 
13.1 Programme Board Members should make themselves available from time to 

time to meet the Leader and Deputy Leaders of Derbyshire Dales District 
Council, both formally and informally, and to attend meetings of Derbyshire 
Dales District Council’s Community and Environment Committee as and 
when invited. 

 
13.2 Programme Board Members shall duly sign and return the Ashbourne 

Reborn Programme Board’s Code of Conduct (Appendix 1) and Declaration 
of Interests on an annual basis. 

 
13.3 The Programme Board may be provided with appropriate and timely training, 

both in the form of an induction programme for new members and on an 
ongoing basis. 

22



 

 
13.4 The Programme Board shall be entitled to invite relevant third parties to 

attend any meeting as observers and they may be entitled to speak at a 
meeting of the Programme Board with the prior permission of the Chair but 
shall not be entitled to vote. 

 
13.5 The Programme Board shall give due consideration to all laws and 

regulations as appropriate. 
 
13.6 The Programme Board will, from time to time, consider projects and 

proposals of a “commercial in confidence” or sensitive nature that will not 
be for publication under existing legislative provisions (Data Protection and 
Freedom of Information).  All Board members and invited third parties will 
observe the need for confidentiality in this respect. 

 
13.7 The Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board will be subject to the privacy 

legislation contained within Data Protection Act 2018, Freedom of 
Information Act 1998 and the Environmental Protection Regulations 
(various).  Such requests will be serviced by Derbyshire Dales District 
Council in accordance with Derbyshire Dales District Council policies and 
procedures. 

 
14. Review 
 
14.1 The Programme Board may amend these terms of reference at any time, 

which will be reviewed on an annual basis as a minimum.

23



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME BOARD CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
1. The Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board has adopted this code setting out 

the expected behaviours required of its Members, acknowledging that they 
each have a responsibility to represent the ambition of the Levelling Up 
Funded project for Ashbourne Town Centre and work constructively with 
Derbyshire Dales District Council, the Delivery Partners, and other partner 
organisations.  

 
2. When acting in a Programme Board Member capacity, members must be 

committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent with the Nolan 
principles to achieve best outcome for our residents and maintain public 
confidence in the actions of the Board: 

 
SELFLESSNESS:  
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.  
 
INTEGRITY:  
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
outside individuals or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence 
them in their work.  
 
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or material benefits 
for themselves, their family or their friends.  They must declare and resolve any 
interests and relationships.  
 
OBJECTIVITY:  
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on 
merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.  
 
ACCOUNTABILITY:  
Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the 
public and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.  
 
OPENNESS:  
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent 
manner.  Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are 
clear and lawful reasons for so doing.  
 
HONESTY:  
Holders of public office should be truthful.  
 
LEADERSHIP:  
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour.  
They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing 
to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.  
 
Conflict of Interests  
 

24



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

A conflict of interest arises where a Programme Board Member, a close 
associate, immediate family, business, organisation or employer has an interest 
in a matter which is the same as, connected to or may be affected by the matter 
under discussion.  
 
At a meeting, Members must declare any interest which they have in any matter 
to be considered at that meeting.  If the interest in the matter being discussed 
which a member of the public who knew of the facts would reasonably regard as 
so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Programme Board Members 
judgement of the Programme Board’s interest in the matter, then the Member 
must declare the interest at the start of the agenda item and must not vote on the 
matter.  However, due to the nature of information the Member may have relating 
to the topic under discussion, such as financial, viability, feasibility and volume 
by way of example, the Programme Board Member will be able to take part in the 
debate.  
 
A Register of Interests will be maintained by the Monitoring Officer of Derbyshire 
Dales District Council.  
 
Registration of Gifts and Hospitality  
 
Programme Board Members must register in the Register of Members Gifts and 
Hospitality, held by the District Council’s Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality 
worth £50 or over received (or offered), in connection with their official duties as 
a Programme Board Member and the source of that gift or hospitality (or offer) 
within 28 days of receiving it.  
 
Acceptance by Programme Board Members of hospitality through attendance at 
relevant events, conferences and other Programme Board related activity is 
acceptable where it is clear the hospitality is corporate rather than personal.  
 
Complaints  
 
Where a person has reason to believe that the conduct of a Programme Board 
Member has fallen short of the standards set out above, encapsulated in the 
Nolan Principles, a complaint may be made in writing to:  
 
Director of Corporate & Customer Services and Monitoring Officer  
Derbyshire Dales District Council 
Town Hall 
Bank Road 
Matlock 
Derbyshire  
DE4  3NN  
 
Or email mo@derbyshiredales.gov.uk  
 
The complaint should set out as follows:  
 
(a) The nature of the complaint 

25

mailto:mo@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

(b) Details of how the Member was acting in an official Ashbourne Reborn 
Programme Board capacity 

(c) Details of which Nolan Principle has been breached and why 
(d) If relating to a conflict of interest, details of how the conflict has occurred 

and impact of that conflict.  
 
The Director of Corporate & Customer Services and Monitoring Officer will review 
the complaint and, in consultation with the Independent Person appointed by 
Derbyshire Dales District Council, determine if the Member was acting in an 
official capacity and if the complaint was proven, whether a Nolan Principle would 
have been breached.  If both these are criteria are met, the complaint will be 
referred to the Chair of the Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board  
 
Removal of an Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board Member 
 
In the event that a Member’s conduct falls short of that expected and a breach of 
the Code of Conduct has taken place, the Programme Board may by resolution 
remove that Member from the Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board.  This may 
only occur when: 
 
(a) The Member has been given at least 14 days clear days’ notice in writing of 

the meeting of the Programme Board at which the resolution will be proposed 
and the reasons why it will be proposed; and  

(b) The Member has been given a reasonable opportunity to make 
representations to the meeting in person and/or in writing.  The other 
Programme Board Members must consider any representations made by the 
Member and inform them of their decision following such consideration. 

(c) There shall be no right of appeal from a decision of the Programme Board’s 
decision to terminate the membership of a Programme Board Member.  

 
Further information  
 
Please email any further queries to mo@derbyshiredales.gov.uk  
 

 

26

mailto:mo@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


Appendix 3 

DRAFT Ashbourne Reborn Decision Making - Roles and Responsibilities 

Project Board/Project Control Board 

Project Boards are responsible for making day to day decisions about the project within the scope, 
timescales, budget and project deliverables (including but not limited to agreed outputs and 
outcomes) within the approved LUF bid. Such decisions should enable the efficient and effective 
management of the project and will include but not be limited to design decisions, delivery planning, 
works co-ordination, risk management, budget management and associated value engineering.  

Where any decisions could negatively impact on the ability to deliver against LUF delivery 
commitments to the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC), these must 
be escalated as recommendations to Programme Board with supporting information and will require 
appropriate approvals.  

Commitments to DLUHC include agreed outputs and outcomes (see appended schedules) and key 
project elements set out in the approved bid and directly supporting value for money/BCR 
calculations. The proposed removal of any whole project element/area constitutes an immediate 
requirement for escalation of the decision. In addition, the Project Board should escalate decisions 
on cumulative impacts that could lead to a risk to delivering against commitments or have the 
potential to undermine the delivery of the agreed vision contained within the LUF bid. 

Project Boards are responsible for monthly reporting to Programme Board and contributing to 
quarterly monitoring reporting to DLUHC.  

Project Boards are responsible for agreeing the procurement of services to deliver the project, 
reflecting agreed Procurement Strategies, and the appointment of professional consultants and 
contractors. Procurement exercises for substantive contracts should be conducted in consultation 
with DDDC as the accountable body. 

Financial decisions are subject to the conditions set out in the grant funding agreement and the 
project budget must be managed by the Project Board within the agreed LUF grant and match 
funding available. Related decisions that have implications for de-scoping project elements or have 
additional budgetary implications requiring partner agreement must be escalated to the Programme 
Board. 

Project Boards should assess their decisions against DLUHC commitments prior to approval or 
escalation. The accountable body / individual Project Board members have the right to escalate a 
decision where a consensus cannot be reached about risk associated with the decision.   

The decision-making process should include the following considerations- 

Step 1 – if the decision to be made is consistent with the following criteria, the decision can usually 
be made at Project Board level:  

• Within the DLUHC approved project scope 
• Reflects and contributes to LUF / DLUHC commitments 
• Within the agreed project budget  
• In line with the agreed procurement strategy (where relevant)  
• In line with the required delivery timeframe  

27



• Does not have the potential to compromise the delivery of other required project elements 
either in isolation or as part of a cumulative impact 

Step 2 – if one or more of the above criteria is not met, the decision should be escalated to 
Programme Board as a recommendation with supporting information including rationale, benefits, 
risks and associated mitigation. 

Programme Board 

Programme Board must, at the earliest opportunity, review any recommendations from Project 
Boards that may have an impact on the ability to fulfill commitments with DLUHC and seek to 
mitigate risk to the Ashbourne Reborn Programme.  

In the event that it is not considered possible to mitigate the substantive impact on these 
commitments and an official Project Adjustment Request is likely to be required with DLUHC, these 
decisions must be escalated to Community and Environment Committee (DDDC) prior to further 
action. Supporting information must include but not be limited to implications for the scope of the 
programme, future grant payments, risk of clawback and reputational risk to Ashbourne Reborn and 
DDDC as the accountable body for the LUF grant funding. 

 

Community and Environment Committee 

Community and Environment Committee must approve any decisions regarding requests to DLUHC 
associated with Ashbourne Reborn that carry financial or reputational risk for Ashbourne Reborn or 
DDDC as the accountable body.  

 

28



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Appendix 4 
 

Activity in advance of LUF bid and since award announcement (summary highlights): 

Date Activity 
March – April 21 Member workshop on LUF opportunities. Council approval to bid  
May-December 21 Consideration of potential projects, informed by partnership engagement  
December 21 Commission of consultant support including Interim Bid Director  
March 22  LUF Round Two Prospectus published by government.  
March 22  Council decision to progress Ashbourne Reborn Project  
June 22 Council bid approval 
July 22  LUF bid submission 
August to Dec 22  Preparatory work continues at DDDC and AMC at risk 
September 22  Monthly Programme Board established 
October 22 Heads of Terms drafted for agreement with AMC. Risk Register reviewed 
November 22 Update report to Council. Comms and Engagement Plan drafted 
December 22 Assurance Framework and approach to Governance established  
January 2023 LUF Award notification 19 January 2023  
Feb 23  MoU received and signed.  Partnership meeting. 

March 23 Public Meeting in Ashbourne attended by 300+ 
March 23  AMC appoint lead designer for Link Community Hub  
March 23 DLUHC inception meeting 

March 23  Executive Group established, maintaining progress and partnership 
dialogue  - up to fortnightly meetings 

April 23  Quarterly monitoring report submitted to Government  

April 23  Letter of Intent provided to DCC in advance of Grant Funding Agreement 

April 23  Branding competition launched at local school 

May 23  
DCC appoint AECOM as lead designer for the public realm and 
highways project, and Bentley Project Management as project 
manager for the public realm and highways project  

May to July 23  Detailed work to progress Grant Funding Agreements  

May 23 Communications Group formally established, meetings at least 6 weekly  

May 23 Project Boards established and initial meetings held – monthly meetings 
scheduled 

June 23  AMC procurement of structural and buildings consultants  

June 23  Communications and Engagement Plan formally approved 

June 23  Meeting with DLUHC 

June 23 Procurement Strategies drafted 

July 23 Summer stakeholder and public engagement events 
July 23 Quarterly monitoring report submitted to Government 

29



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Date Activity 
July 23 Appointment of the full Link Community Hub Design Team 

July 23 Completion of branding competition with QEGS students and issue 
of final programme logo 

August 23 Completion of draft RIBA Stage 3 designs, highways and public 
realm 

August 23 Surveys and inspections for Link Community Hub to support RIBA 
Stage 4 designs 

September 23 Submission of the Listed Building Consent application for works to 
Market Place and Victoria Square 

 

 

30



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 

31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Ashbourne Reborn Link Community Hub 
Link Project Board #5  -   3pm on 5th September 2023 

DRAFT Meeting Minutes 
5.  1.0 Attendees & Circulation 
Attendees (In Person) 
Ian Marsh  (AMC)   - Chair 
Laura Simpson (DDDC) 
Richard Barratt (AMC) 
Tony Walker  (AMC) 
John Barker (AMC) 
Jane Willars  (AJA Architect) 
Ollie Cradock    (AJA Architect)  
Adrian Bates (Greenwood Projects)  
Giles Dann (DDDC) 

 
Circulation 
Steve Capes (DDDC) 
Mike Harrison (AJA Architect) 

 
Ref 

Note Action by 

5  .2.0 Corrections to Project Board #4 Minutes  
5  .2.1 The minutes of Project Board #4 were accepted without alteration  
5 .3.0 Any other matters to be added to the Agenda  
5.  3.1 Declarations 

IM advised that he has become aware that one of his neighbours worked on 
the tender submission of one of the companies who tendered for the Structural 
and Civil Engineering Consultancy. The company was not selected as the 
recommended tenderer. IM was part of the tender evaluation process. 

 

5.  4.0  DLUHC/LUF matters  
5.  4.1  
 

The next Programme Board is on Weds 27th September.   

5  .4.2 LS reminded the meeting that the report from DDDC to DLUHC is due for 
submission in October, based on the project status at the end September.    
This needs to include the current risk position, updated cashflow, and further 
detail of Outcome & Output monitoring processes.  

• Some Outcome / Output baseline work is required to be undertaken at  
programme level.  LS and TW will discuss if any baseline data is 
required for the specific LCH project measures. 

• Risk and Cashflow information should be provided by GPL for 
submission to the Project Board on 3rd October, after discussion and 
workshops with the AMC Ops team (RB and IM). 

The progress report information (text) should follow the July format 

 
 
 
 
LS / TW 
 
 
GPL 
 
 
GPL/AMC 

5  .4.3 DDDC (LS) are to issue the DDDC order number for AMC to use on Invoices for 
the quarter. The current claim and invoice submission process is working, but 
payments are held until the GFA is finalised. 

LS 

5.  5.0 Funding Agreement update  
5.  5.1 The draft GFA is with AMC’s solicitors, Anthony Collins, for final checks and /or 

updates. A list of clarifications and recommendations has been received.  These 
are seen as minor. The document is subject to final review by TMCP for them to 
confirm the agreement complies with Methodist rules and charity law.    

 

5.  5.2 Once all parties are agreed on the final GFA version, it will be signed by two 
designated AMC Trustees and then by DDDC authorised person(s). 

 

33



 

 

5.  5.3 All parties should note that for DDDC to report spend to DLUHC for this project, 
the GFA needs to be concluded in sufficient time for payments to AMC to be 
made by the end September.   

 

5.  5.4 DDDC have shared the advice received from their solicitors on subsidy control 
with AMC. 

 

5.  6.0 Mobility Hub  
5.  6.1 TW has had additional information from Michael Rich regarding the DCC match 

funding included in the LUF bid.  Based on this and the overall letter of support 
for the bid from DCC, TW will draft for LS, a proposed joint AMC/DDDC 
response to DCC  to endeavour to progress this funding. It was agreed to 
progress this separately from other DCC issues, such as the Station Road 
pavement works. 

TW / LS 

5.  6.2 Station Road shared pavement /cycle way designs have been produced by 
AECOM.  The associated costs should be known as part of the Public Realm 
Stage 3 cost plan expected by end September.  The costs for this cycle way and 
pavement changes are not in the current PR budget cost plan. 
Noted that under Air Quality improvements, new Traffic Lights at the Station 
Road / Church St junction are proposed for installation late 2023/early 2024. 

 

5.  6.3 No further substantive work to facilitate a cycle hire building has been 
undertaken.  The next AMC Planning submission will not include this facility, 
but the garden design allows for later inclusion. 

 

5.  7.0 Design Update  
5.  7.1 The full design team has now been in place for nearly two months. Fire 

Strategy, Acoustics and Landscape design works are within the AJA 
appointment.  CPW (Services) and Ridge (Structural / Civil) are AMC 
appointments. 

 

5.  7.2 More detailed building layout work is progressing. An alternative for Chapel 
House has been agreed which simplifies the work / cost. The vestry outrigger 
layouts and toilet arrangements at the garden entrance are being worked on. 

 

5.  7.3 The garden layout has been revised following discussion with AMC.  The 
proposal to remove the copper beech has yet to be discussed with the DDDC 
tree officer.  Support was requested to facilitate this discussion. 

DDDC 

5.  7.4 For the planning submission,  the required Flood Risk report and the Heritage 
Statement of Significance are complete, and the Arboricultural report is being 
finalised. 
The Ecology report is outstanding.  The scope of the bat roost surveys has been 
extended for a second time. In August an additional survey on Chapel House 
was required. Unexpectedly,  a further  night survey for the Century Hall roof 
bat roost is now required, which is planned for 7th September.  
The report is quoted as taking 4 weeks beyond last survey (ie to 6th Oct). This 
delays the Planning submission, and improvement will be sought. 
 
AJA are continuing to liaise with the DDDC planning officer.  Support was 
offered by LS to see if (as an exception) the Planning Application can be 
accepted before the Ecology report is ready.   
AJA will prepare a suitable briefing paragraph for LS. 
 
Council Planning Meeting dates are December12th 2023 or 16th January 2024. 

 
AJA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AJA  
 
AJA / LS 

5.  7.5 Appointments have been made during August  for surveys and minor works: 
 Asbestos R&D survey  - survey completed. 

 

34



 

 

 Archaeology survey – Site meeting has agreed that the scope can be 
reduced to omit any new inspection trenches 
 Trial Pits for Civil Engineer - underway 
 Fabric opening up for Architect and Services Engineers – underway 
 Drainage Survey – Planned for 25th September 
 Building Control Inspections – Note that site inspections are included at 
2 week intervals during construction. 
Quotes are awaited for the Ground Investigation core sampling. 

5.  7.6 The revised submission for Methodist Church Listed Building Approval was 
considered at the meeting on 18th July. Whilst written confirmation is awaited, 
verbal positive feedback has been received.  The minute is needed for the 
Planning submission. 

 
AJA 

5.  7.7 A positive meeting with DCC to discuss the Station Road wall was held on 6th 
September.  Kevin Parkes provided a point of contact (John Malinowski) for GPL 
to follow up co-ordination of the technical design, and for AMC to  discuss 
subsequent legal issues (Howard Moncaster).   

GPL 

5.  8.0 Programme  
5. 8.1 The GPL report includes the relevant programme information.  The overall 

construction period of 13-14 months is agreed but the detailed phasing is 
continued to be discussed with AMC.  

 

5.  8.2 Initial proposals for Station Road hoardings are to be shared with AECOM / DCC 
to co-ordinate and minimise  potential disruption across the whole programme.  

GPL 

5.  8.3   GPL have produced a procurement plan outlining the process for the 
construction works ITT.  Once reviewed and agreed with AMC this will be 
copied to DDDC for information. 

AMC/GPL 

5.  9.0 Cost Plan  
5.  9.1 The cost plan remains significantly over budget, and the Design Team are 

continuing to review scope options, challenging material standards and other 
VE. 
GPL have taken note of recent market cost and inflation pressure on budgets 
experienced on a separate DDDC project, where re-tendering was required. 

 

5.  9.2 GPL will calculate the cashflow/ spend profile, for the October DLUHC report. GPL 

5.  9.3 The increased construction industry rate of inflation beyond LUF bid 
assumptions is a significant element of the budget pressure.  The indication is 
that DLUHC are unlikely to award additional funding, so a submission to 
formally reduce the LUF scope may be required. 
GPL advised they know of NLHF projects were claims for exceptional inflation 
have been accepted. DDDC asked if details of these claims can be provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
GPL 

5.  10.0 Health and Safety  

 5. 10.1 The GPL report includes the relevant information  
5.  11.0 Communications and Publicity  
5.  11.1 DDDC outlines some additional Comms resourcing proposed.  On the Public 

Realm strand the AECOM Comms Team have provided some proposals to 
increase the profile and hopefully ‘wow’ aspects of the public facing comms.   
Across the programme (but funded elsewhere) DDDC are also proposing a 2 
year appointment of a new Comms staff post. 
The use of Hoardings to promote the overall programme was discussed.  
Forthcoming construction contract ITT will include for suitable hoardings. 

 

35



 

 

5.  11.2 TW confirmed the Town Council were progressing with the Thinking Place 
proposals.  Funding is now in place for the first stage work.  The Town Team will 
act as client’s agent to work with Thinking Place. 

 

5.  12.0 Actions from Previous Meeting not already covered  
5.  12.1 Previous 4.11.2.  The social media questions have been responded to.  
5.  12.2 Previous 4.13.2.  The requested briefing meeting of the LCH project for David 

Hughes was held on 16th August 
 

5.  12.3 Previous 4.13.3  The AMC Procurement Strategy document entitled 
Procurement Guidelines was issued on 12th August.  

 

5.  13.0 AOB  
5.  13.1 AJA lead architect will shortly start maternity leave. Ollie Cradock will continue 

in role working to Mike Harrison. 
Post Meeting Note – an AJA / AMC handover meeting is scheduled to clarify 
roles and responsibilities to avoid gaps, and ensure smooth transfer and 
continuance of the AJA work.  

 

5.  14.0 Future Meetings  
5.  14.1 The preference is for these meetings to be in person for the future, which all 

attendees are content with. 
 

5.  14.2 The next meeting is on Tuesday 3rd October at 15:45 at Ashbourne Methodist 
Church 

  

 

36



 
 
ASHBOURNE REBORN – HIGHWAYS AND PUBLIC REALM  
Meeting Minutes 
 

Project Control Board Meeting   
Tuesday 5th September 2023 
 
Attendees Company 

Cllr Simon Spencer  Derbyshire County Council (Chair) 
Jim Seymour 
Kevin Parkes 

Derbyshire County Council 
Derbyshire County Council 

Laura Simpson  
Giles Dann 

Derbyshire Dales District Council 
Derbyshire Dales District Council 

Sue Bridgett 
Tim Challans  
Carole Dean 

AshCom  
Town Team  
Town Council   

Ryan Hunt Aecom  
Jen Riley 
Ranbir Mander  

Bentley Project Management  
Bentley Project Management 

  
  
Apologies:  
Cllr Cupit 
Kim Dorrington  
Scott Harris 
Ranbir Mander 

Derbyshire County Council (Vice Chair) 
Town Team 
Aecom 
Bentley Project Management 

 

  

 
1.00 Welcome and Apologies   

1.01 Apologies from Cllr Cupit, Kim Dorrington, Scott Harris and Ranbir 
Mander. 
 
 

 

2.00 Declaration of Interest   
2.01 A declaration of interest form will be issued to all PCB members to 

complete and return to Derbyshire County Council once agreed by 
DCCs Data Protection Team. The form will adopt a similar style to 
DCC Members Declaration.  
 
Declaration of Interest will be a standing item on the agenda and a 
Register is to be kept of any and all Declarations of Interest. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

37



 
3.00 Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising    
3.01 Recap of previous meeting and actions from 22nd August were 

confirmed by all as accepted with the following exceptions: 
 
Cllr Spencer clarified that the Enhanced Traffic Management Plan that 
DCC are working on is not considered contentious.  
 
GD reiterated that Communications was a programme wide matter and 
the Communications role / where it sat needed to reflect this.  A joint 
paper DDDC / DCC paper was being prepared. 
 

 

3.02 Shawcroft Car park Designs  
RH discussed the designs for Shawcroft Car Park and some of the 
assumptions made.  It was agreed that separating pedestrian and vehicle 
movements would be beneficial.  RH agreed to add a note to reflect 
that there will be storage for the market added.  This has been left off 
the drawing to date as it has not been fully discussed yet. 
 
Ashbourne Town Council own the bus shelter.  Options for moving or 
replacing this will need to be discussed further.  It was noted that the 
current bus shelter attracts ASB behaviour so the design of any 
replacement would need to be carefully considered. 
 
The disabled bays have been considered with the target of losing as few 
as possible. The aim is to keep the same number (or a betterment) 
across the Town as this was a key concern raised during public 
consultation and DLUHC may request an Equality Impact Assessment at 
different points of the project, which this will feed into. 
 
New bollards near to Boots would be removable to allow loading to 
shops instead of from St John’s Street.  Those with a right of way have 
indicated that they would be happy to load from Shawcroft as long as it 
was properly controlled.  
 
The overflow car park was discussed. Bringing this into use would 
support the delivery of the Ashbourne Reborn project once works 
start on site and parking is removed from Market Place.  DDDC are 
considering its use as part of the parking review.  Cllr Spencer 
highlighted that this car park cannot become hardstanding according to 
the planning consent.  GD to feed back to DDDC colleagues. 
 
RH raised a potential additional opportunity to create parking on King 
Street (where it joins the road to Sainsburys) this is currently outside of 
scope but could be combined with the other TROs to limit cost if this 
was pursued. 

 
 
 
RH 

   
4.00 
4.01 
 
 
 
 

Design Development  
Listed Building Consent 
RH confirmed that the Listed Building Consent Application would be 
submitted today after final approval by DCC.  Some comments had 
been submitted by DDDC which were being reviewed.  Aecom will 

 
 
 
RH 

38



 
submit the drawings as they are and request an amendment at detailed 
design if necessary, E.g. the style and location of the bins.  

 
 
5.00 
5.01 
 
 
 
 

Millennium Square Update  
No further update available.  CD to update the Board once programme 
timescales are understood to allow this to be communicated to the 
public. 
 
The project costs are to be circulated to the Board after the meeting 
for use by DDDC to demonstrate further additionality and match 
funding to DLUHC. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
CD 

6.00 
6.01 
 

Draft Procurement Strategy  
The draft strategy was circulated within the Board Pack.  It sets out the 
project approach to procurement and has been written with input from 
both DDDC and DCC.  The recommendations reflect the 
requirements and constraints of the programme and funding 
requirements.  Board members were invited to comment and ask 
questions.  Social Value, VFM and ability to tie Aecom’s detailed design 
phase in with the ECI stage were explained.  All agreed to approve and 
adopt the strategy to allow DCC to start talking to the recommended 
framework and start engaging an ECI contractor. 
 
Programme Board are to be informed of this decision. 
 
Cllr Spencer requested the drafting of some FAQS for local businesses 
to set out how we intend to use protocols to encourage the use of 
local suppliers and sub-contractors.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LS 
 
 
 
KP/JR 
 

7.00 
7.01 

Risk Update  
The top ten project risks had been circulated to the Board for review. 
 
Cllr Spencer requested an additional column to be added to the Risk 
Register to demonstrate trends/changes in risk scoring. 
 
DDDC to arrange a meeting to update the strategic risks in early 
October to inform the DLUHC return. 
 

 
 
 
JR 
 
 
LS 

8.00 
8.01 

Programme Update  
The programme is currently 4 weeks in delay.  All future tasks are 
connected to the completion of the Grant Funding Agreement between 
DDDC and DCC.  This task is critical path and therefore impacts on 
the overall programme and could potentially delay the completion date 
beyond the funding milestone for completion.  Both parties are working 
towards an agreement on the sharing of risk.  This needs to be resolved 
prior to the agreement completing.   
 
The delay to submitting the LBC application will not impact on the 
overall programme.  
 

 
 
GD/LS/KP/JS 

39



 

 
 

 

 

9.00 
9.01 

DLUHC 
The next grant claim is due at the end of October. The latest 
programme information will be required at this time also. DLUHC will 
ask for selective programme information. The programme and related 
funding profile need to be as accurate as possible as the monitoring 
returns inform the six-monthly grant payments, which are made one 
quarter in advance and one in arrears. If works are accelerated it could 
result in cash flow issues but if work is delayed, it could present as 
underspend and reduce the next grant payment.  

 

10.0 AOB  
  

Communications Strategy: 
DDDC and DCC are preparing a paper for approval by Programme 
Board later this month outlining a Communications Officer post.  The 
post will report to the established Communications Group that is made 
up of representatives of PCB and AMC.  It is expected that this will be a 
fixed term role for two years and funded by DDDC. This is subject to 
DDDC approval and successful recruitment.   
 
Cllr Spencer would like to review this paper before it is circulated and 
prior to his annual leave on 17th September. 
 
As an interim measure, Aecom have been approached to provide a 
proposal to carry out this role for the short term, (3-4 months) to be 
funded by DDDC.  
 
Millennium Square  
The costs for Millennium Square Hut Demolition are £40k. CD to share 
to allow DDDC to demonstrate additionality to DLUHC. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
GD/JS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CD 

40



EXTENT OF WORKS

N

CUT LINE A
CUT LINE A

INSET A

EXTENT OF WORKS
EXTENT OF WORKS

N

CUT LINE A
CUT LINE A

INSET A

EXTENT OF W
ORKS

EX
TE

NT
 O

F 
W

OR
KS

NCUT LINE A

CUT LINE A
CU

T
LIN

E 
B

CU
T

LIN
E 

B

CUT LINE E CUT LINE E

CONTINUED ON INSET A
INSET A

1.284

EXTENT OF W
ORKS

EX
TE

NT
 O

F 
W

OR
KS

MARKET
PLACE

SQUARE

VICTORIA

EXTENT OF W
ORKS

EX
TE

NT
 O

F 
W

OR
KS

NCUT LINE A

CUT LINE A
CU

T
LIN

E 
B

CU
T

LIN
E 

B

CUT LINE E CUT LINE E

CONTINUED ON INSET A
INSET A

Drawing Number Rev
Project Originator Volume

Location

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED PURSUANT TO AND SUBJECT TO THE
TERMS OF AECOM'S APPOINTMENT BY ITS CLIENT. AECOM ACCEPTS NO

LIABILITY FOR ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENT OTHER THAN BY ITS ORIGINAL
CLIENT OR FOLLOWING AECOM'S EXPRESS AGREEMENT TO SUCH USE, AND
ONLY FOR THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED AND PROVIDED.

DateApprovedReviewedDrawn

Internal Project No.

Drawing Title

Suffix
By

REVISION DETAILS Date
App

Project Title

Client

Suitability

Scale @ A1 Volume

Purpose of issue

Designed

www.aecom.com 
Tel:

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION BOX

IT IS ASSUMED THAT ALL WORKS ON THIS DRAWING WILL BE
CARRIED OUT BY A COMPETENT CONTRACTOR WORKING, WHERE

APPROPRIATE, TO AN APPROPRIATE METHOD STATEMENT.

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF ISSUE THAT IT WAS
ISSUED FOR AND IS SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT.

EXCEPTIONAL RISKS RELATING TO THE WORKS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
DRAWING ARE IDENTIFIED BELOW.

Verified

Type Role NumberMCHW

Derbyshire County Council, County Hall,  Matlock, DE4 3AG 

Town Hall, Bank Rd, Matlock DE4 3NN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022.
Ordnance Survey 100023251. You are not

permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

KEY

Pl
ot

 D
at

e 
:

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
:

ASHBOURNE REBORN

General Arrangement

JS JS --- --- ---

60707682 S0

Initial status or WIP

C
:\P

W
W

O
R

KI
N

G
\A

EC
O

M
_D

S0
2_

U
K-

C
LT

\R
YA

N
.J

.H
U

N
T@

AE
C

O
M

.C
O

M
\D

05
17

67
4\

AS
H

R
EB

-A
C

M
-H

G
N

-G
EN

-D
R

-C
H

-0
10

00
09

16
 A

ug
us

t 2
02

3 
16

:5
9:

27

AECOM

Chesterfield
Basil Close
Royal Court

+44 -1246-209221

JS
--- P01.2

1:250

---

ASHREB P01.2ACM HGN
GEN DR CH 0090100

EXISTING SIGNALISED CROSSING WIDENED BY 800MM

TRAFFIC SIGNALS RELOCATED TO
ACCOMMODATE WIDENED CROSSING

SEE DRAWING
ASHREB-ACM-ELS-GEN-DR-LA-3000004
FOR MARKET PLACE DETAILS

SEE DRAWING
ASHREB-ACM-ELS-GEN-DR-LA-3000002
FOR VICTORIA SQUARE DETAILS

SEE DRAWING
ASHREB-ACM-ELS-GEN-DR-LA-3000005
FOR THE GALLERY DETAILS

MILLENNIUM SQUARE SEATING AREA
DESIGN BY GUY TAYLOR
ARCHITECTURE

'GREEN MAN' POST RETAINED AND
PROTECTED DURING WORKS

VEHICLE ACCESS RETAINED

PROPOSED DISABLED
PARKING BAY FLUSH WITH
FOOTWAY

TIE-IN WITH VICTORIA
SQUARE WORKS

NEW UNCONTROLLED
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING POINT

ACCESS TO GREEN MAN YARD

PROPOSED LOADING BAY WITH
APPROX 250MM WIDE SPLAY KERBS
FACING CARRIAGEWAY AND 255MM
CHANNEL KERB SURROUND. FLUSH
WITH FOOTWAY.

PROPOSED LOADING BAY WITH
APPROX 250MM WIDE SPLAY KERBS
FACING CARRIAGEWAY AND 255MM
CHANNEL KERB SURROUND. FLUSH
WITH FOOTWAY.FOOTWAY WIDENED AT EXISTING

PINCH POINT

NEW UNCONTROLLED
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING POINT

ACCESS TO HORSE AND
JOCKEY YARD

NEW UNCONTROLLED
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING POINT

PAVING ADJUSTED TO SUIT
NEW CROSSING LOCATION.
EXISTING PAVING MATERIALS
REUSED WHERE POSSIBLE

NEW UNCONTROLLED
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING POINT

NEW UNCONTROLLED
PEDESTRIAN CROSSING POINT

ON-STREET PARKING PROPOSED
ON ST JOHN STREET

BUILD OUT AT CROSSING TO REDUCE CROSSING
WIDTH, IMPROVE PEDESTRIAN COMFORT LEVELS
AND ALLOW FOR ADDITIONAL ON-STREET PARKING

EXISTING PARKING ADJUSTED - 2 NO. BAYS
REMOVED TO ALLOW FOR TURNING VEHICLES

EXISTING PAVING RATIONALISED
AROUND MIDDLE CALE

PAVING AT SHOP FRONTAGE AND
DESIRE LINES TO IMPROVE
ACCESSIBILITY

2 NO. NEW PARKING BAYS PROPOSED WITH
25MM UPSTAND AT FACE OF CARRIAGEWAY

CARRIAGEWAY CENTRELINE ADJUSTED TO
BETTER ACCOMMODATE EXISTING TRAFFIC
MOVEMENTS

EXISTING KERBLINE ADJUSTED TO IMPROVE
TURNING PATH OF LARGE VEHICLES

START OF GATEWAY FEATURE PRIOR TO CROSSING
TO REINFORCE NEW DRIVER BEHAVIOURS -
GRITSTONE KERB USED AS EDGE RESTRAINT

JUNCTION ROAD MARKINGS ADJUSTED TO
BETTER ACCOMMODATE EXISTING TRAFFIC
MOVEMENTS

DRAFT

CARRIAGEWAY - ASPHALT WITH
DECORATIVE BUFF CHIPPINGS HOT
ROLLED ONTO SURFACE

FOOTWAY - LARGE PAVING SLABS,
CREAM COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC WITH
DDDC/DCC

LOADING BAYS/PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS
- SMALL ELEMENT PAVING, BUFF
COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC

DISABLED BAY/VEHICLE ACCESS - SMALL
ELEMENT PAVING, DARK GREY/BROWN
COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC

UNCONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - BUFF, BLISTER
400X400MM

CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - RED, BLISTER
400X400MM

GRITSTONE KERB

CHANNEL KERB LAID FLUSH WITH
CARRIAGEWAY

DUTCH ENTRANCE KERB

EXISTING HERITAGE PAVING RETAINED

EXISTING 'COBBLE' PAVING RETAINED

CONCRETE DRAINAGE CHANNEL
255MM WIDE FALLING TO PEDESTRIAN
SAFE GULLIES

CHANNEL KERB LAID FLUSH WITH
FOOTWAY DRAINING TO GULLIES

CONCRETE DRAINAGE CHANNEL
255MM WIDE FALLING TO PEDESTRIAN
SAFE GULLIES

BACK-TO-BACK KERBS WITH LOW
LEVEL PLANTER TO PREVENT VEHICLE
RUNOVER

FOOTWAY WITH LARGE PAVERS
WIDENED TO ACCOMMODATE
PEDESTRIANS WAITING AT
CROSSING POINT

EXISTING KERBLINE - 125mm UPSTAND

EXISTING KERBLINE - CROSSING/ACCESS

WORKS BOUNDARY

41

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
B 5035

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Hillview

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
B 5034

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
B 5035

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Hillview

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
B 5034

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
B 5035

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Hillview

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
B 5034

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Kennedy

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
B 5035

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Lovatts Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
The Stable

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
ST JOHNS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Information

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Tourist

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Town

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
UNION STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Bakers

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Isadorn

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
Tiger Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Boswell Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
B 5034

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
Shakespeare

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
Frith's Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Kennedy

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
B 5035

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Lovatts Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
The Stable

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
ST JOHNS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Information

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Tourist

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Town

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
UNION STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Bakers

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
Isadorn

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Tiger Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Boswell Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
B 5034

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
Shakespeare

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
Frith's Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Kennedy

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
B 5035

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Lovatts Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
The Stable

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
ST JOHNS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
Information

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Tourist

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
Town

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
UNION STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Bakers

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
Isadorn

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Tiger Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
Boswell Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
B 5034

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Shakespeare

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
Frith's Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
PH



N

CUT LIN
E B

CUT LIN
E B

CU
T L

IN
E D

CU
T L

IN
E D

CUT L
INE C

CUT L
INE C

N

CUT LIN
E B

CUT LIN
E B

CU
T L

IN
E D

CU
T L

IN
E D

CUT L
INE C

CUT L
INE C

Drawing Number Rev
Project Originator Volume

Location

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED PURSUANT TO AND SUBJECT TO THE
TERMS OF AECOM'S APPOINTMENT BY ITS CLIENT. AECOM ACCEPTS NO

LIABILITY FOR ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENT OTHER THAN BY ITS ORIGINAL
CLIENT OR FOLLOWING AECOM'S EXPRESS AGREEMENT TO SUCH USE, AND
ONLY FOR THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED AND PROVIDED.

DateApprovedReviewedDrawn

Internal Project No.

Drawing Title

Suffix
By

REVISION DETAILS Date
App

Project Title

Client

Suitability

Scale @ A1 Volume

Purpose of issue

Designed

www.aecom.com 
Tel:

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION BOX

IT IS ASSUMED THAT ALL WORKS ON THIS DRAWING WILL BE
CARRIED OUT BY A COMPETENT CONTRACTOR WORKING, WHERE

APPROPRIATE, TO AN APPROPRIATE METHOD STATEMENT.

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF ISSUE THAT IT WAS
ISSUED FOR AND IS SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT.

EXCEPTIONAL RISKS RELATING TO THE WORKS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
DRAWING ARE IDENTIFIED BELOW.

Verified

Type Role NumberMCHW

Derbyshire County Council, County Hall,  Matlock, DE4 3AG 

Town Hall, Bank Rd, Matlock DE4 3NN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022.
Ordnance Survey 100023251. You are not

permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

KEY

Pl
ot

 D
at

e 
:

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
:

ASHBOURNE REBORN

General Arrangement

JS JS --- --- ---

60707682 S0

Initial status or WIP

C
:\P

W
W

O
R

KI
N

G
\A

EC
O

M
_D

S0
2_

U
K-

C
LT

\R
YA

N
.J

.H
U

N
T@

AE
C

O
M

.C
O

M
\D

05
17

67
4\

AS
H

R
EB

-A
C

M
-H

G
N

-G
EN

-D
R

-C
H

-0
10

00
09

16
 A

ug
us

t 2
02

3 
16

:4
8:

32

AECOM

Chesterfield
Basil Close
Royal Court

+44 -1246-209221

JS
--- P01.2

1:250

---

ASHREB P01.2ACM HGN
GEN DR CH 0100100

EXISTING VEHICLE ACCESS POINT
MODIFIED TO CONTINUOUS FOOTPATH
WITH DROP KERB ACCESS. EXISTING
VEHICLE RUN-OVER PAVING USED AS
SURFACE PAVING.

EXISTING VEHICLE ACCESS POINT
MODIFIED TO CONTINUOUS FOOTPATH
WITH DROP KERB ACCESS. EXISTING
VEHICLE RUN-OVER PAVING USED AS
SURFACE PAVING.

EXISTING VEHICLE ACCESS POINT
MODIFIED TO CONTINUOUS FOOTPATH
WITH DROP KERB ACCESS. EXISTING
VEHICLE RUN-OVER PAVING USED AS
SURFACE PAVING.

EXISTING FOOTPATH TO BE UTILISED
AS SHARED-USE FOR CYCLISTS AND
PEDESTRIANS

EXISTING CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN
CROSSING RETAINED

EXISTING CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN
CROSSING RETAINED

NO PROPOSED CHANGES TO SIGNALS ON
DIG STREET/CHURCH STREET JUNCTION

EXISTING CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN
CROSSING RETAINED

PROPOSED DISABLED PARKING BAY
FLUSH WITH FOOTPATH

PROPOSED LOADING BAY WITH
APPROX 250MM WIDE SPLAY KERBS
FACING CARRIAGEWAY AND 255MM
CHANNEL KERB SURROUND. FLUSH
WITH FOOTWAY.

1.2M WIDE FOOTWAY

PROPOSED LOADING BAY WITH
APPROX 250MM WIDE SPLAY KERBS
FACING CARRIAGEWAY AND 255MM
CHANNEL KERB SURROUND. FLUSH
WITH FOOTWAY.

MINOR BUILDOUT OF 600MM
PROPOSED AT PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
POINT TO IMPROVE FOOTPATH WIDTH
FROM 1.2M TO 1.8M

CARRIAGEWAY - ASPHALT WITH
DECORATIVE BUFF CHIPPINGS HOT
ROLLED ONTO SURFACE

FOOTWAY - LARGE PAVING SLABS,
CREAM COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC WITH
DDDC/DCC

LOADING BAYS/PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS
- SMALL ELEMENT PAVING, BUFF
COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC

DISABLED BAY/VEHICLE ACCESS - SMALL
ELEMENT PAVING, DARK GREY/BROWN
COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC

UNCONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - BUFF, BLISTER
400X400MM

CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - RED, BLISTER
400X400MM

GRITSTONE KERB

CHANNEL KERB LAID FLUSH WITH
CARRIAGEWAY

DUTCH ENTRANCE KERB

EXISTING HERITAGE PAVING RETAINED

EXISTING 'COBBLE' PAVING RETAINED

DRAFT

CONCRETE DRAINAGE CHANNEL
255MM WIDE FALLING TO PEDESTRIAN
SAFE GULLIES

CONCRETE DRAINAGE CHANNEL
255MM WIDE FALLING TO PEDESTRIAN
SAFE GULLIES

CHANNEL KERB LAID FLUSH WITH
FOOTWAY DRAINING TO GULLIES

EXISTING KERBLINE - 125mm UPSTAND

EXISTING KERBLINE - CROSSING/ACCESS

WORKS BOUNDARY

42

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
Henmore Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
A515

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
Heritage

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
Vine Hse

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
Vine

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
30b

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
Limes

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Bez View

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
Trinity

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
Meth Ch

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Henmore Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
A515

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
Heritage

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
Vine Hse

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Vine

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
30b

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
Limes

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Bez View

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
Trinity

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
Meth Ch

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
Henmore Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
A515

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
Heritage

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
Vine Hse

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
Vine

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
30b

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
Limes

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
Bez View

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
Trinity

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
Meth Ch

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
16



EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF W
ORKS

N

CU
T 

LIN
E 

D
CU

T 
LIN

E 
D

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF W
ORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF W
ORKS

N

CU
T 

LIN
E 

D
CU

T 
LIN

E 
D

Drawing Number Rev
Project Originator Volume

Location

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED PURSUANT TO AND SUBJECT TO THE
TERMS OF AECOM'S APPOINTMENT BY ITS CLIENT. AECOM ACCEPTS NO

LIABILITY FOR ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENT OTHER THAN BY ITS ORIGINAL
CLIENT OR FOLLOWING AECOM'S EXPRESS AGREEMENT TO SUCH USE, AND
ONLY FOR THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED AND PROVIDED.

DateApprovedReviewedDrawn

Internal Project No.

Drawing Title

Suffix
By

REVISION DETAILS Date
App

Project Title

Client

Suitability

Scale @ A1 Volume

Purpose of issue

Designed

www.aecom.com 
Tel:

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION BOX

IT IS ASSUMED THAT ALL WORKS ON THIS DRAWING WILL BE
CARRIED OUT BY A COMPETENT CONTRACTOR WORKING, WHERE

APPROPRIATE, TO AN APPROPRIATE METHOD STATEMENT.

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF ISSUE THAT IT WAS
ISSUED FOR AND IS SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT.

EXCEPTIONAL RISKS RELATING TO THE WORKS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
DRAWING ARE IDENTIFIED BELOW.

Verified

Type Role NumberMCHW

Derbyshire County Council, County Hall,  Matlock, DE4 3AG 

Town Hall, Bank Rd, Matlock DE4 3NN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022.
Ordnance Survey 100023251. You are not

permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

KEY

Pl
ot

 D
at

e 
:

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
:

ASHBOURNE REBORN

General Arrangement

JS JS --- --- ---

60707682 S0

Initial status or WIP

C
:\P

W
W

O
R

KI
N

G
\A

EC
O

M
_D

S0
2_

U
K-

C
LT

\R
YA

N
.J

.H
U

N
T@

AE
C

O
M

.C
O

M
\D

05
17

67
4\

AS
H

R
EB

-A
C

M
-H

G
N

-G
EN

-D
R

-C
H

-0
10

00
09

16
 A

ug
us

t 2
02

3 
16

:4
9:

38

AECOM

Chesterfield
Basil Close
Royal Court

+44 -1246-209221

JS
--- P01.2

1:250

---

ASHREB P01.2ACM HGN
GEN DR CH 0110100

COMMUNITY BUS DROP
OFF/PICK UP POINT OUTSIDE
METHODIST CHURCH

NEW PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
INSTALLED WITH BLISTER
TACTILE PAVING ('BUFF'
COLOUR, 400X400MM)

RAISED FEATURE REDUCED
IN WIDTH AND FOOTPATH
WIDTH INCREASED TO
ACCOMMODATE SHARED USE

UTILITY COVER LOWERED TO
NEW FOOTWAY LEVEL

EXISTING PEDESTRIAN
CROSSING RETAINED WITH
DROPPED KERBS ON BOTH
SIDES OF RAISED FEATURE

EXISTING FOOTPATH
INCREASED TO 2.5M WIDTH TO
ACCOMMODATE SHARED USE

EXISTING PARKING BAYS RETAINED.
APPROXIMATELY 2 PARKING BAYS
LOST TO ACCOMMODATE COMMUNITY
BUS DROP OFF/PICK UP BAY

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
COMMUNITY HUB ENTRANCE. TO BE
TIED-IN WITH COMMUNITY HUB WORKS

EXISTING RETAINED COBBLESTONES
REMOVED AND DRAINAGE ADJUSTED
TO SUIT THRESHOLD LEVELS AND
PREVENT BACKFALL OF SURFACE
WATER

EXISTING FOOTPATH
INCREASED TO 2.5M WIDTH TO
ACCOMMODATE SHARED USE

EXISTING SIGNALISED
CROSSING RETAINED,
KERBLINE ADJUSTED TO
INCREASE FOOTPATH WIDTH

TIE-INTO EXISTING KERBLINE
ON KING EDWARD STREET

CONCRETE DRAINAGE
CHANNEL IN FOOTWAY FALLING
TO PEDESTRIAN-SAFE GULLY

TACTILES INSTALLED AT
EXISTING PEDESTRIAN
CROSSING OVER VEHICLE
ACCESS POINT

FOOTWAY - ASPHALT AC6 SURFACE
COURSE OR SIMILAR

FOOTWAY - LARGE PAVING SLABS, TO
MATCH EXISTING

UNCONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - BUFF, BLISTER
400X400MM

CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - RED, BLISTER
400X400MM

CONCRETE KERB

REBUILD RAISED FEATURE
WITH EXISTING MATERIALS

CARRIAGEWAY - ASPHALT SURFACE BUS
LAY-BY

DRAFT

EXISTING KERBLINE - 125mm UPSTAND

EXISTING KERBLINE - CROSSING/ACCESS

WORKS BOUNDARY

43

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
30b

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
Tunnel

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
6b

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
Lambourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
Beresford Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
Coopers

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
CHURCH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
Trinity

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Chapel House

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
The Mansion

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
Meth Ch

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
Coachman's

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
30b

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Tunnel

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
6b

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
Lambourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
Beresford Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
Coopers

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
CHURCH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
Trinity

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
Chapel House

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
The Mansion

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
Meth Ch

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
Coachman's

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
BUS ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
28b

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
30b

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
Tunnel

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
6b

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
Lambourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
Beresford Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
Coopers

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
CHURCH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
Trinity

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
Chapel House

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
The Mansion

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
Meth Ch

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
Coachman's

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
48



EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF

W
ORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EX
TE

NT
 O

F

WORK
S

N

CUT L
INE C

CUT L
INE C

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF

W
ORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EX
TE

NT
 O

F

WORK
S

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTENT OF

W
ORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EX
TE

NT
 O

F

WORK
S

N

CUT L
INE C

CUT L
INE C

Drawing Number Rev
Project Originator Volume

Location

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED PURSUANT TO AND SUBJECT TO THE
TERMS OF AECOM'S APPOINTMENT BY ITS CLIENT. AECOM ACCEPTS NO

LIABILITY FOR ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENT OTHER THAN BY ITS ORIGINAL
CLIENT OR FOLLOWING AECOM'S EXPRESS AGREEMENT TO SUCH USE, AND
ONLY FOR THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED AND PROVIDED.

DateApprovedReviewedDrawn

Internal Project No.

Drawing Title

Suffix
By

REVISION DETAILS Date
App

Project Title

Client

Suitability

Scale @ A1 Volume

Purpose of issue

Designed

www.aecom.com 
Tel:

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION BOX

IT IS ASSUMED THAT ALL WORKS ON THIS DRAWING WILL BE
CARRIED OUT BY A COMPETENT CONTRACTOR WORKING, WHERE

APPROPRIATE, TO AN APPROPRIATE METHOD STATEMENT.

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF ISSUE THAT IT WAS
ISSUED FOR AND IS SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT.

EXCEPTIONAL RISKS RELATING TO THE WORKS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
DRAWING ARE IDENTIFIED BELOW.

Verified

Type Role NumberMCHW

Derbyshire County Council, County Hall,  Matlock, DE4 3AG 

Town Hall, Bank Rd, Matlock DE4 3NN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022.
Ordnance Survey 100023251. You are not

permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

KEY

Pl
ot

 D
at

e 
:

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
:

ASHBOURNE REBORN

General Arrangement

JS JS --- --- ---

60707682 S0

Initial status or WIP

C
:\P

W
W

O
R

KI
N

G
\A

EC
O

M
_D

S0
2_

U
K-

C
LT

\R
YA

N
.J

.H
U

N
T@

AE
C

O
M

.C
O

M
\D

05
17

67
4\

AS
H

R
EB

-A
C

M
-H

G
N

-G
EN

-D
R

-C
H

-0
10

00
09

16
 A

ug
us

t 2
02

3 
16

:5
1:

02

AECOM

Chesterfield
Basil Close
Royal Court

+44 -1246-209221

JS
--- P01.2

1:250

---

ASHREB P01.2ACM HGN
GEN DR CH 0120100

CARRIAGEWAY - ASPHALT WITH
DECORATIVE BUFF CHIPPINGS HOT
ROLLED ONTO SURFACE

FOOTWAY - LARGE PAVING SLABS,
CREAM COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC WITH
DDDC/DCC

LOADING BAYS/PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS
- SMALL ELEMENT PAVING, BUFF
COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC

DISABLED BAY/VEHICLE ACCESS - SMALL
ELEMENT PAVING, DARK GREY/BROWN
COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC

UNCONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - BUFF, BLISTER
400X400MM

CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - RED, BLISTER
400X400MM

GRITSTONE KERB

CHANNEL KERB LAID FLUSH WITH
CARRIAGEWAY
DUTCH ENTRANCE KERB

VEHICLE ACCESS

APPROX 255MM WIDE CHANNEL
KERBS LAID FLUSH AT BACK
EDGE OF LOADING BAY

PROPOSED DISABLED PARKING BAY
FLUSH WITH FOOTPATH

PROPOSED LOADING BAY FLUSH WITH FOOTWAY, TO BE
USED AS FOOTWAY WHEN NOT IN USE. SPLAY KERBS AT
FACE OF CARRIAGEWAY, APPROXIMATELY 255MM WIDE
TO ACCOMMODATE FREQUENT VEHICLE OVERRUN.

RAISED CONTINUOUS FOOTWAY WITH SMALL ELEMENT
PAVING TO HIGHLIGHT POTENTIAL CONFLICT

DUTCH ENTRANCE KERBS

DUTCH ENTRANCE KERBS

RETROFITTED GUARD RAIL/PARAPET ON BRIDGE TO
PREVENT PEDESTRIANS FALLING OVER BRIDGE. WALL
MAY BE REBUILT TO INCREASE HEIGHT. EXISTING WALL
IS TOO LOW TO ACCOMMODATE FOOTWAY.

BRIDGE OVER HENMORE BROOK

NEW UNCONTROLLED DROP
CROSSING INTRODUCED

INFORMATION BOARD
RELOCATED OUTSIDE OF
PEDESTRIAN DESIRE LINE

4 NO. PARKING SPACES WITH A
25MM UPSTAND AT THE
CARRIAGEWAY AND 100MM
UPSTAND AT THE FOOTWAY

3 NO. PARKING SPACES WITH A
25MM UPSTAND AT THE
CARRIAGEWAY AND 100MM
UPSTAND AT THE FOOTWAY

DECORATIVE CHIPPED ASPHALT
WITH CREAM COLOURED
CHANNEL KERBS EITHER SIDE TO
CREATE SENSE OF NARROWED
CARRIAGEWAY. SHOWN 4.1M
WIDE, BUT COULD BE REDUCED.

NEW UNCONTROLLED DROP
CROSSING INTRODUCED

PROPOSED LOADING BAY FLUSH WITH FOOTWAY, TO BE
USED AS FOOTWAY WHEN NOT IN USE. SPLAY KERBS AT
FACE OF CARRIAGEWAY, APPROXIMATELY 255MM WIDE
TO ACCOMMODATE FREQUENT VEHICLE OVERRUN.

PROPOSED LOADING BAY FLUSH WITH FOOTWAY, TO BE
USED AS FOOTWAY WHEN NOT IN USE. SPLAY KERBS AT
FACE OF CARRIAGEWAY, APPROXIMATELY 255MM WIDE
TO ACCOMMODATE FREQUENT VEHICLE OVERRUN.

ELECTRIC CABINET (REPORTED TO
BE FIBRE OPTIC - TO BE
CONFIRMED) POSSIBLY SPLIT INTO
TWO LOADING BAYS OR REDESIGN

EXISTING CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN
DROP CROSSING RETAINED

TIE-IN WITH SHROVETIDE WALK
(DESIGN BY GUY TAYLOR
ARCHITECTURE)

EXISTING UNCONTROLLED
PEDESTRIAN DROP CROSSING OVER
KING EDWARD STREET RETAINED

DRAFT

CONCRETE DRAINAGE CHANNEL
255MM WIDE FALLING TO PEDESTRIAN
SAFE GULLIES

CONCRETE DRAINAGE CHANNEL
255MM WIDE FALLING TO PEDESTRIAN
SAFE GULLIES

BENCH AND PLANTERS TO BE
CONSIDERED

EXISTING KERBLINE - 125mm UPSTAND

EXISTING KERBLINE - CROSSING/ACCESS

WORKS BOUNDARY

44

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
Henmore Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
Business

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
Ashbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
Shawcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
A515

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
Henmore

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
Henmore Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
Business

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
Ashbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
Shawcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
A515

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
Henmore

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
Henmore Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
Business

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
Ashbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
Shawcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
A515

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
Henmore

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
Hood's Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
Henmore Brook



EXTE
NT O

F W
ORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTE
NT O

F W
ORKS

EXTENT OF

W
ORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

N

CUT LINE E

CUT LINE E

EXTE
NT O

F W
ORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

EXTE
NT O

F W
ORKS

EXTENT OF

W
ORKS

EXTENT OF WORKS

N

CUT LINE E

CUT LINE E

Drawing Number Rev
Project Originator Volume

Location

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED PURSUANT TO AND SUBJECT TO THE
TERMS OF AECOM'S APPOINTMENT BY ITS CLIENT. AECOM ACCEPTS NO

LIABILITY FOR ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENT OTHER THAN BY ITS ORIGINAL
CLIENT OR FOLLOWING AECOM'S EXPRESS AGREEMENT TO SUCH USE, AND
ONLY FOR THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED AND PROVIDED.

DateApprovedReviewedDrawn

Internal Project No.

Drawing Title

Suffix
By

REVISION DETAILS Date
App

Project Title

Client

Suitability

Scale @ A1 Volume

Purpose of issue

Designed

www.aecom.com 
Tel:

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION BOX

IT IS ASSUMED THAT ALL WORKS ON THIS DRAWING WILL BE
CARRIED OUT BY A COMPETENT CONTRACTOR WORKING, WHERE

APPROPRIATE, TO AN APPROPRIATE METHOD STATEMENT.

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF ISSUE THAT IT WAS
ISSUED FOR AND IS SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT.

EXCEPTIONAL RISKS RELATING TO THE WORKS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
DRAWING ARE IDENTIFIED BELOW.

Verified

Type Role NumberMCHW

Derbyshire County Council, County Hall,  Matlock, DE4 3AG 

Town Hall, Bank Rd, Matlock DE4 3NN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022.
Ordnance Survey 100023251. You are not

permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

KEY

Pl
ot

 D
at

e 
:

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
:

ASHBOURNE REBORN

General Arrangement

JS JS --- --- ---

60707682 S0

Initial status or WIP

C
:\P

W
W

O
R

KI
N

G
\A

EC
O

M
_D

S0
2_

U
K-

C
LT

\R
YA

N
.J

.H
U

N
T@

AE
C

O
M

.C
O

M
\D

05
17

67
4\

AS
H

R
EB

-A
C

M
-H

G
N

-G
EN

-D
R

-C
H

-0
10

00
09

25
 A

ug
us

t 2
02

3 
18

:1
2:

00

AECOM

Chesterfield
Basil Close
Royal Court

+44 -1246-209221

JS
--- P01.2

1:250

---

ASHREB P01.2ACM HGN
GEN DR CH 0130100

CARRIAGEWAY - ASPHALT WITH
DECORATIVE BUFF CHIPPINGS HOT
ROLLED ONTO SURFACE

FOOTWAY - LARGE PAVING SLABS,
CREAM COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC WITH
DDDC/DCC

LOADING BAYS/PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS
- SMALL ELEMENT PAVING, BUFF
COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC

DISABLED BAY/VEHICLE ACCESS - SMALL
ELEMENT PAVING, DARK GREY/BROWN
COLOUR, MATERIAL TBC

UNCONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - BUFF, BLISTER
400X400MM

CONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
TACTILE PAVING - RED, BLISTER
400X400MM

GRITSTONE KERB

CHANNEL KERB LAID FLUSH WITH
CARRIAGEWAY
DUTCH ENTRANCE KERB

DRAFT

EXISTING KERBLINE (UPSTAND)

EXISTING KERBLINE (CROSSING/ACCESS)

INDICATIVE RED LINE BOUNDARY

7 DISABLED PARKING BAYS RETAINED. 2
REGULAR PARKING BAYS LOST TO ALLOW
FOR SUFFICIENT WIDTH FOR BUS MOVEMENT

2 DISABLED PARKING BAYS RETAINED. 1
DISABLE BAY RELOCATE TO MARKET PLACE TO
ALLOW FOR GREATER PEDESTRIAN FOOTWAY

EXISTING BUS SHELTER UPGRADED

1.8M WIDE PEDESTRIAN FOOTWAY STRIP
PROVIDED FLUSH TO CARRIAGEWAY

AREA REPAVED WITH 1.8M WIDE STRIP TO
GUIDE PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENTS AND
IMPROVE PEDESTRIAN LINK TO BUS STOP

3 BOLLARDS, CENTRAL REMOVABLE TO
PERMIT VEHICLE ACCESS FOR
BUSINESSES IN HORSE & JOCKEY YARD

AREA REPAVED WITH 2.0M WIDE STRIP TO
CONTINUE DESIGN THROUGH SHAWCROFT
CAR PARK AND SEPARATE WALKWAY AND
CAFE SEATING AREA

DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS WHERE
POSSIBLE. TO BE REVIEWED IN DETAILED
DESIGN

REMOVABLE BOLLARD TO RESTRICT ACCESS
AND ENABLE LOADING VEHICLES TO
BUSINESSES/EMERGENCY SERVICES.
PREFERENCE FOR SOUTHERN ACCESS BUT MAY
BE LIMITED BY EXISTING RIGHTS OF WAY

45

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
Business

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
Ashbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
11 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
12 to 26

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
SHAW CROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
Shawcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
Business

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
Ashbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
11 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
12 to 26

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
SHAW CROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
Shawcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Hood's Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
Salt

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
Horse and Jockey Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
Wellington Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
Alley

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
The Gallery

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
A515



N

MARKET
PLACE

SQUARE

VICTORIA
S

S

BIN

S

S

S

RB

RB

S

S

 B

 B

 B

 B

 B

 B

RB

RB

 B

 B

S

RB

 B

 B

Drawing Number Rev
Project Originator Volume

Location

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN PREPARED PURSUANT TO AND SUBJECT TO THE
TERMS OF AECOM'S APPOINTMENT BY ITS CLIENT. AECOM ACCEPTS NO

LIABILITY FOR ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENT OTHER THAN BY ITS ORIGINAL
CLIENT OR FOLLOWING AECOM'S EXPRESS AGREEMENT TO SUCH USE, AND
ONLY FOR THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED AND PROVIDED.

DateApprovedReviewedDrawn

Internal Project No.

Drawing Title

Suffix
By

REVISION DETAILS Date
App

Project Title

Client

Suitability

Scale @ A1 Volume

Purpose of issue

Designed

www.aecom.com 
Tel:

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION BOX

IT IS ASSUMED THAT ALL WORKS ON THIS DRAWING WILL BE
CARRIED OUT BY A COMPETENT CONTRACTOR WORKING, WHERE

APPROPRIATE, TO AN APPROPRIATE METHOD STATEMENT.

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF ISSUE THAT IT WAS
ISSUED FOR AND IS SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT.

EXCEPTIONAL RISKS RELATING TO THE WORKS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
DRAWING ARE IDENTIFIED BELOW.

Verified

Type Role NumberMCHW

Derbyshire County Council, County Hall,  Matlock, DE4 3AG 

Town Hall, Bank Rd, Matlock DE4 3NN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023.
Ordnance Survey 100023251. You are not

permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

KEY

Pl
ot

 D
at

e 
:

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
:

ASHBOURNE REBORN

Listed Building Consent
Proposed Layout

JS JS RH SH 30/08/23

60707682 S5

Suitable for review & acceptance by an appointing party

C
:\P

W
W

O
R

KI
N

G
\A

EC
O

M
_D

S0
2_

U
K-

C
LT

\R
YA

N
.J

.H
U

N
T@

AE
C

O
M

.C
O

M
\D

05
17

67
4\

AS
H

R
EB

-A
C

M
-G

EN
-G

EN
-D

R
-Z

Z-
01

00
00

7
06

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

02
3 

14
:0

9:
39

AECOM

Chesterfield
Basil Close
Royal Court

+44 -1246-209221

Initial Issue
JS

RH
30/08/23

JS

RH
06/09/23

P01

P02Minor amendments following client
comments - clarification of text

1:250

SH

ASHREB P02ACM GEN
GEN DR ZZ 0070100

NATURAL STONE SLABS

GRANITE SETT STONES (MARKET PLACE)

PROPOSED LIMESTONE SLABS

EXISTING SLABS TO BE RETAINED

LIMESTONE SETTS (BUXTON ROAD)

STONE SETTS (MARKET PLACE)

NATURAL STONE KERB

NATURAL STONE SLABS

TACTILE PAVING

WAYFINDING SIGN

LIGHTING COLUMN

UPLIGHTERS

LISTED BUILDING CONSENT BOUNDARY

Existing tree to be retained

Proposed cycle stands

Existing listed lamp
post to be retained

Seating area indicative. Specific areas to be
confirmed subject to licensing considerations.

Existing granite setts to
be retains and repaired
where neccessary

Existing way finding post

Bollards proposed to
protect listed lamp post

Existing limestone setts to retained
and where necessary be repaired and
mortar filled to the top of the surface
to create accessible surface

Bins to be managed by consultation with affected
businesses. Timber storage will not resolve issue
and cannot be located in sufficient quantities

Existing Grade II* listed Green
man sign

Existing mounting
block to be retained

Disabled bay and 3 short stay car parking bays
demarcated with setts in contrasting colourWay finding post

Existing Market cross/ Wright memorial
upgraded with proposed seating and lighting

Seating area indicative to inform
consultation. Specific areas to be confirmed.
Subject to licensing considerations.

Ticket machine removed
and lighting column installed

Modern seating introduced

Benches, Cycle Stands and trees to prevent
unapproved vehicle access on Market Place

Build Out Created At Crossing Using Similar
Materials to Adjacent Area, To Reduce Crossing
Width, Improve Pedestrian Comfort Levels And
Allow For Additional On_Street Parking

Retractable Bollards to
allow access for deliveries

Retain existing Yorkstone paving
and repair where necessary

Multi use event space

Second Alternative Pop-Up
Power point with recess cover

Pop-Up Power point with recess
cover. Gifas Campetto VI or similar

Clean Water utility
access point for events

Retractable Bollards to allow access for
deliveries/events

Relocate existing traffic signals
to accomodate wider crossing

Removable bollard for pedestrian
safety during events (potentially
installed as NAL socket to allow
for future proofing)

Proposed seating

Proposed litter bin

Illuminated Sign Post

Relocated Tourist Map

Vehicle Access Retained And Adjusted
To Suit Proposed Kerb Alignment, New
Material To Match Existing

Footway Widened at Pinch Point.
Materials Adjacent Victoria
Square To Match Existing

LayBy Parking Bay For Short Stay Vehicles

SCALE 1:250

1050 15 20 25m

New lighting column to be installed

Existing sign to be replaced

Alternative location for parking
ticket machine

46

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
Wellington Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
Lovatts Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
The Stable

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
Information

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
Tourist

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
Town

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
Maltings

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
UNION STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
Bakers

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
Isadorn

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
Tiger Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
Lorash

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
Coxons Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
Boswell Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
B 5034

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
Shakespeare

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
Frith's Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
Coxon's Yard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
PH

http://www.ursglobal.com
http://www.ursglobal.com
http://www.ursglobal.com


PROCUREMENT STRATEGY
June 2023

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Ashbourne Reborn, Highways and Public 
Realm  

  

47



 

  
 

3 

1. Executive Summary .........................................................................................................................4 

2. Introduction ...................................................................................................................................7 

2.1. Background ................................................................................................................................7 

2.2. Report Purpose ...........................................................................................................................7 

3. Phasing and Programme Constraints ................................................................................................7 

3.1. LUF Funding Drawdown Deadline ................................................................................................7 

3.2. Duration and Commencement .....................................................................................................9 

4. Choice of Contract ...........................................................................................................................9 

5. Procurement Options and Associated Forms of Contract .................................................................11 

5.1. Procurement Options Considered ..............................................................................................11 

6. Form of Contract ...........................................................................................................................16 

6.1. Incentivisation ..........................................................................................................................16 

6.2. Contract and Performance Management ....................................................................................18 

6.3. Management of Contract Risk ...................................................................................................18 

6.4. Procurement Risk .....................................................................................................................18 

7. Employer Responsibilities ..............................................................................................................18 

7.1. Reference Design (employer’s requirements) .............................................................................18 

7.2. Planning Applications ................................................................................................................19 

7.3. Land Assembly ..........................................................................................................................19 

7.4. Technical Assurance ..................................................................................................................19 

8. Professional Team Procurement ....................................................................................................19 

8.1. Contracts placed to date ...........................................................................................................19 

8.2. Future procurement appointments ............................................................................................20 

8.3. Procurement Monitoring ...........................................................................................................20 

9. Programme ..................................................................................................................................21 

10. Conclusions and Recommendations ...........................................................................................21 

Appendix 1 - Outline Programme ................................................................................................................ 

Appendix 2 Levelling up Fund Procurement Register .................................................................................... 

48



 

  
 

4 

 
1. Executive Summary 
 
The Ashbourne Reborn, Highways and Public Realm project is funded by the Levelling Up 
Fund (LUF2) and associated match funding.  The LUF2 funding was secured by Derbyshire 
Dales District Council (DDDC) who are the ‘Accountable Body’ for the delivery of the project.  
They have a duty to ensure that the funding conditions are met, one of which is to ensure 
that any procurement is fully compliant with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.   
 
Derbyshire County Council (DCC) are the delivery lead for the project, in part due to the 
County’s ability to access frameworks with contractors who are experienced and competent 
in the delivery of the Ashbourne Reborn scope of works. 
 
It is critical that all options are explored when considering how this project should be 
procured and delivered.  This procurement strategy has been prepared so that the project 
needs can be considered along with the solutions that are available in the current market. 
 
The project programme is optimistic due a delay in the funding announcement and 
inevitable impact this has had on all LUF2 funded projects. 
 
The completion milestone is fixed as March 2025 (although some negotiation has taken 
place with Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) which, if 
approved, could see an extension to July 2025. 
 
When considering options, programme must be kept in mind for this reason.  Delays to 
procurement and appointment of the main contractor will inevitably lead to failure to meet 
the funding milestones. 
 
To allow us to progress with the next stage of the Ashbourne Reborn Highways and Public 
Realm project, the project team have worked through the compliant options for the 
appointment of a Main contractor to include ECI, which will enable us to advance through 
RIBA stage 4, detailed design. 
  
A design and build form of contract should be adopted given the time, and cost certainty it 
delivers when compared to a more traditional route.  DCC should therefore look to utilise a 
suitable framework due to the programme advantages this offers over an open tender 
approach.  
 
The MHA+ framework is a suitable framework to accommodate the project needs and is one 
regularly used by both this, and other authorities for this scale and nature of project.  It is 
therefore recommended that DCC access this framework to develop this scheme further 
through ECI input into Stage 4 Design and onto Construction.  
 
Due to the current level of outline design already procured to obtain planning permission, it 
is deemed that the design and build contract through the MHA+ MSF4 framework would be 
ideally suited for this scheme. It is also recommended that the contract be awarded through 
either the mini competition or direct call off route, with direct call off currently being the 

49



 

  
 

5 

preferred option, using the option of Contractor Early Involvement (ECI) under the NEC 4 
X22 clause. 
 
Although a single contract includes both design and construction, the contract is delivered 
in two stages. The first stage will be used for the design and associated works. The second 
stage will be used for construction. There is no obligation on the Council to proceed from 
stage one to stage two and therefore no liability, at this time, for any construction costs.  
 
It should also be acknowledged that there are responsibilities on DCC that sit outside what 
the contractor will deliver, and such responsibilities will be managed collectively through 
the project team already appointed, along with additional technical resource.   
 
It is important that this work is commenced as soon as practicable to avoid further delay 
and to ensure the project gets the right level of input as it progresses.  It is also vital that the 
project secures the necessary key decisions at the relevant programme milestones. Specific 
key decision reports will be prepared in line with the programme to include entering into 
the design and build contract. 
  

50



 

  
 

6 

2. Introduction 
 
2.1. Background 
 
DDDC submitted a bid for Levelling Up Fund (LUF2) monies in 2022 and was subsequently 
awarded approximately £13m funding in January 2023. Over £8million of this funding is for 
delivery of the Ashbourne Reborn Highways and Public Realm Project, for which DCC are the 
lead delivery partner. 
 
DCC have appointed Bentley Project Management (BPM) as their Project Director and 
Aecom for the Stage 3 Design and submission of the planning application.   
 
For the purposes of this report DCC are often referred to as the Client as defined under the 
NEC form of contract. 
 
The Highways and Public Realm Project draws together improvements to key sites across 
Ashbourne.  To ensure an efficient and cost effective approach and avoid duplicating 
procurement activities, all project elements are to be delivered within the main 
construction contract. Different contractors for different elements of the public realm 
package would present challenges regarding the co-ordination of works and in maintaining 
consistency in the quality of work and use of materials.  The appointment of a single 
contractor is therefore considered the optimum approach, especially given that the main 
constraints are cost and programme.  
 
2.2. Report Purpose 
 
This report sets out the procurement strategy for the Ashbourne Reborn Highways and 
Public Realm scheme, referenced throughout this report as “the scheme”, and has been 
developed in line with the NEC Establishing a Procurement and Contract Strategy Volume 1 
(2017) to meet requirements associated with LUF grant expenditure.  
 
The aim of the report is to discuss different procurement routes as the means of achieving 
the procurement strategy and will include the contract strategy that best meets the client’s 
needs, while remaining focused on Derbyshire County Council’s delivery ambitions and 
values. These consist of working in collaboration with their partners, upholding social, and 
environmental values, delivering value for money through working with best practices and 
making the best use of the resources available. 
 
3. Phasing and Programme Constraints 
 
There are a number of key constraints governing the overall programme and approach to 
the Ashbourne Reborn scheme, its procurement and delivery, including: 
 
3.1. LUF Funding Drawdown Deadline 
 

51



 

  
 

7 

A key constraint of the scheme is the need to evidence delivery and complete drawdown of 
LUF funding by March 2025.  There will be no opportunity to draw down LUF funding 
beyond this date.  As a result, the scheme cashflow has been outlined to prioritise draw 
down of LUF monies, using match funding only to complete the scheme after the LUF draw 
down is complete. Given the scheme programme is currently indicating an expected 
construction period of May 2024 – July 2025 it is considered that this will be achievable 
unless further delay occurs. The Procurement Strategy has given due consideration to which 
options allow for an increased construction, and Early Contractor Involvement period 
(discussed in section 9 - Programme). 
 

 

 

The baseline programme can be summarised as follows for the purpose of this report: 

 

Activity Baseline Programme Comments 

Appointment of Design Team  May 2023  Aecom appointed for Stage 3 only  
RIBA Stage 3 Design Complete  August 2023  
Funding Agreement in place August 2023 Without this Stage 4 design cannot proceed 
Listed Building Consent 
Application Submitted  

August 2023  

   
Listed Building Consent Granted  November 2023  
ECI procured and Appointed  September 2023  
RIBA Stage 4 Design Approved March 2024  
Main Contractor Appointment April 2024  
Start on Site  May 2024  
Completion on Site  July 2025 This date remains subject to DLUHC approval  

 

Whilst programme milestones are those defined by the DLUHC monitoring returns, it should 
be noted that there are effectively 3 tender stages1 in progressing the Ashbourne Reborn 
scheme proposals that are defined below: 
 

Stage 0: Pre-planning (up to planning consent, not usually defined as a separate stage).   
This stage includes: 

- preparation of any baseline site information including any known constraints 
- technical work required to support a planning application such as an environmental 

impact assessment 
- survey and investigation work required to support a planning application 
- preparation of the planning application 
- planning determination 

 

 
1 MHA MSF3 X22 Process Map 
 

52

https://www.mhaplus.org.uk/member/


 

  
 

8 

Stage 1: Pre-construction.  
This stage includes: 

- planning activity in conjunction with stage 1  
- post-planning activity e.g. discharge of planning conditions 
- detailed design 
- design approvals and technical compliance 

 
Stage 2: Construction.  
This stage includes: 

- construction of the scheme 
 
Stages 0-1 do not necessarily follow in sequence and there may be overlap in stages to 
accelerate the programme.  
 

The following sections of the report will refer back to the above 3 stages in order to clarify 
roles and responsibilities and risk allocation: 
 

- Choice of contract  
- Procurement options and associated forms of contract 
- Design and build contracts 
- Employer responsibilities 
- Programme 
- Gateway reviews and decision making 

 

3.2. Duration and Commencement  
 

In accordance with the funding milestone the scheme is due to commence on 3rd May 2024. 

 
4. Choice of Contract  

There are generally two approaches to this type of project: 

- Traditional  

- Design & Build  

 

Cost reimbursable contracts such as construction management or management contracting 
have been discounted due to DCC’s key drivers on the project i.e. time and cost certainty. 

With either of the above options, planning, approvals, land and legal would typically be 
controlled and managed by the Client and not passed to a contractor. The associated risks 
would be typically taken on by the Client.  

 

53



 

  
 

9 

The table below summarises the key features of the two approaches: 

 

Traditional (with pre-construction services 
agreement) 

Design and Build 

 DCC appoint designer to develop designs and submit 
planning application  

Outline design is completed by the designer for 
planning 

Outline design is completed by the designer for 
planning  

DCC appoints designer for the full scheme DCC appoint an ECI contractor to input into the 
design including phasing and ‘buildability’  

If early contractor involvement is desirable, then 
DCC would enter into a stage 1 Pre-Construction 
Services Agreement (PCSA). 

DCC appoint a contractor for the construction works 
and novate the designer 

Planning is obtained by DCC Planning is obtained by DCC 

Detailed design is undertaken by DCC’s designer 
with input from the contractor 

Contractor continues to produce the detailed design 

A target cost is developed from the detailed design 
and agreed with the employer. 

A target cost is developed from the detailed design 
and agreed with the Client. 

 N.B., the point at which the price is fixed will change 
the risk profile for the employer and the contractor.  

Fixing the target price earlier in the design phase will 
typically lower the risk to the employer but increase 
the target price. This is because design changes or 
corrections (not arising from scope changes) will be 
a contractor risk and will not change the target 
price. The contractor will therefore require 
additional contingency sums to mitigate their 
additional risk. 

Notice to proceed issued and Stage 2 of the contract 
commences. The contractor starts work on site. 

Notice to proceed issued and Stage 2 of the contract 
commences. The contractor completes any 
outstanding design and starts work on site. 

Higher risk of exposure to DCC as design changes or 
corrections will be an employer risk, resulting in 
increased construction costs. 
 
 
Scope changes are a DCC responsibility. 
 
Overall project costs are likely to be lower as the 
employer retains more risk. 

Lower risk exposure to DCC as any design changes or 
corrections will be a contractor risk, and do not 
change the target price. Risk is not eliminated due to 
the pain/gain mechanism of the Option C contract in 
which both the employer and contractor share the 
risk of cost overruns above the agreed target price. 
 
Scope changes are a DCC responsibility. 
 
 

 

In order to make a recommendation on which approach to take, we have to consider DCC’s 
overall objectives identified above.  Time and cost certainties are key drivers for DCC and 
the design and build route provides greater certainty at the point in which the construction 
commences, than if a full traditional approach were to be adopted.  

 

54



 

  
 

10 

 

5. Procurement Options and Associated Forms of Contract 
 
5.1. Procurement Options Considered 
 
In order to progress the design and build contract option we also need to consider what 
procurement options are available to DCC.  The following procurement options are 
considered within this section: 
 

• In-house delivery 
• Open Find a Tender Service (FTS2) tender 
• Restricted FTS tender (with competitive dialogue) 
• FTS compliant framework 

o SCAPE 
o Midlands Highway Alliance Plus (MHA+) framework 

- Mini competition 
- Direct call off - using model projects 
- Sub regional Call-off 

 
5.2. In-house Delivery 

DCC does not have the capacity to deliver a scheme of this size in house, and whilst 
considered this was discounted at an early stage. 
 
5.3. Open FTS Tender Procedure 

The project could be tendered through the Find a Tender Service (FTS) which replaced the 
former OJEU process following the UK’s withdrawal from the European Union in January 
2021. This process would constitute an open tender for construction activity on the project 
and provides the opportunity for any interested bidder  to tender for the work, which 
increases the level of competition and can result in bids from a greater number of suppliers. 
  
Whilst this process theoretically enables a high level of competition and coverage in the 
market, there could be associated risks for the Client with the quality of responses (given 
the complexity and value of the scheme) and the willingness of the larger organisations who 
are enabled and experienced in this type of work to respond to an open tender of this scale 
and value given current market conditions.  
 
The overall timescales with this approach are typically 4-6 months longer than utilising a 
framework.  This will push back the scheme delivery and prevent funding milestones being 
met.  
 
 
 

 
2 Find a Tender Service (FTS) replaced OJEU / TED in the UK on the 31st December 2020 
 

55



 

  
 

11 

 
5.4. Restricted OJEU tender (with competitive dialogue) 

The project could be tendered in a two-stage process allowing for an initial qualifying stage 
to shortlist suitable contractors, who would then be invited to participate in a dialogue 
stage. 
  
Competitive dialogue allows tenderers to submit initial solutions after being successful at 
the selection stage. It then allows the contracting organisation to negotiate proposed 
solutions with bidders. The process of competitive dialogue is often used when greater 
flexibility is needed in projects where key elements of the project are unable to be specified 
at the time of tender allowing bidders to have a key role in defining the solution. 
  
Whilst this process can offer value and innovation, practically the process of competitive 
dialogue can incur enormous costs for both the contracting authority and the bidders (with 
some bidders often unwilling to take part in this process without the underwriting of costs 
from the contracting authority). The process is also likely to take a much longer period, 
given the complexities of liaising with multiple bidders on potentially different construction 
solutions. 
 
The overall timescales with going down this route are typically 4-6 months longer than 
utilising a framework.  This will push back the scheme delivery and prevent funding 
milestones being met.  

 
 

5.5. FTS compliant framework 

We have considered which frameworks are available, and whilst other frameworks such as 
Pagabo and Highways England’s own framework are available, the following frameworks are 
the ones most commonly used for this type of scheme in this regional area.  

 
5.5.1. SCAPE Framework 

The SCAPE Civil Engineering National Framework offers a direct procurement option for the 
delivery of major, complex civil engineering works. The framework offers an end-to-end 
service from pre-construction and ECI / feasibility advice through to project delivery, and 
also offers an opportunity to partner with an experienced contractor to develop and deliver 
the project. 
 
The framework lends itself to design and build and is currently used by a number of local 
authorities. The framework features a number of phases but importantly includes a stage 
prior to entering into a two-stage contract where the contractor can familiarise themselves 
with the scheme (referred to as Stage 0), identify workstreams, and provide budget 
estimates for the design and build elements.  
 
The four-year framework – which is available for use by all public sector organisations - will 
accelerate the delivery of Infrastructure Projects of all values and is live until November 
2026. 

56



 

  
 

12 

 
SCAPE is most useful when utilised at early Inception stage which allows the opportunity to 
take advantage of the 'free’ Feasibility work (the cost of this work will just be incorporated 
into their rates).  As the Feasibility work had already been commissioned seperately by the 
District Council, and a Designer appointed At Risk by the County Council to allow the project 
to progress to a planning application as per the bid milestones, the effectiveness of using 
SCAPE is questioned.   
 
Using the Civil Engineering National framework from SCAPE would limit the Contractor 
options.  Balfour Beatty are SCAPE’s National provider and the only option.  There is no 
opportunity to demonstrate Value For Money.  
 
Balfour Beatty do not have a presence in this region and therefore the quality of the specific 
requirements of this appointment may be compromised, not least their ability to provide 
the level of public and stakeholder engagement required before, during and after the 
construction period.  Contractors that are based further afield, often don’t deliver the 
appropriate level of Social Value Outputs or Client/Customer Care in respect of Defect 
Resolution. 
 

5.5.2. Midlands Highway Alliance Plus (MHA+) Medium Schemes Framework 4 

The MHA+ is developed and run with the support of the Regional Improvement and 
Efficiency Partnership, now working together with other similar regional construction 
frameworks. The current Medium Schemes Framework 4 (MSF4) has replaced MSF3 from 
April 2022, it is a like for like replacement, it closely follows the most recent National 
Construction Category Strategy for Local Government - Effective Construction Frameworks, 
January 2016. 
 
The framework scope of the MSF4 is for the execution of highway, civil and municipal 
engineering works. Typical schemes may involve, but not exclusively be, highway 
improvements, highway maintenance, highway infrastructure works (including bridges, 
subways, culverts and retaining walls), public realm works (town centre enhancements), 
drainage improvements, canal works and other infrastructure works such as waste 
management facilities.  
 
The Midlands Highway Alliance (MHA+) was formed in 2007, with a key objective to develop 
an effective procurement option for the delivery of highway civil and municipal engineering 
schemes, and that makes it suitable for procurement for the Ashbourne Reborn scheme. 
The Framework is used as a model for regional alliances being set up across the country. The 
common aim is to work together to improve performance, share best practice and make 
efficiency savings in the delivery of highway services. It is estimated by MHA that the 
Framework has saved member authorities £4million a year.   
 
MSF4 commenced in April 2022, having run through a Find a Tender (FTS) procurement 
exercise, and with no Lot restrictions on suppliers (i.e. the framework selection was wider, 
with existing Lot 1 and Lot 2 to widen the pool). The maturity of the framework and 

57



 

  
 

13 

contractual protocols provides a number of advantages, in particular on management of 
risk, and no upper ceiling on scheme cost. 

The ethos of the framework is to achieve efficient methods by working collaboratively. All 
parties are expected to share experiences and innovation for the mutual benefit of the 
framework community. The project teams work together to introduce innovation, share 
learning, and improve programming and use of resources, all areas which align closely with 
the Client’s values. In line with DCC’s core values the MHA+ framework is committed to 
provide opportunities to create social value by creating additional social, economic and 
environmental benefits. 

The framework also allows for Early Contractor Involvement building on collaboration, 
knowledge sharing and a spirit of trust and openness.  This supports the ability to mobilise 
quickly, and it also allows greater time and opportunity for ECI to achieve lowest outturn 
cost.  
 
 
 
 
 
5.6. MHA+ MSF4 Route to Market 

Under the MHA+, the form of contract will be the NEC4 Framework Contract (June 2017), 
and the Client may award works using one of the following options:  
 

5.6.1. Mini-Competition 

The Client may opt to invite all contractors on the framework to compete under a mini 
competition, by formally inviting them to submit a mini-tender. Only the contractors who 
respond in full to the requirements of the mini competition by the deadlines will be 
considered.  Once the deadline has passed the Client will open and evaluate the returned 
mini tenders based on a pre-described tender scores, for both quality and price, with the 
prices being evaluated under a full price weighting percentage system. The contractor with 
the highest aggregate score (i.e. for price and quality) will be invited, via instruction, to 
follow the framework’s quotation procedure. 
 
Under normal circumstances, the mini competition route would be deemed as offering the 
best value for money, based on the nature of the competitive tendering process.  However, 
the additional time taken to conduct the mini competition process, out-weigh the potential 
benefits on the price.  It should also be noted that while mini-competition may well produce 
a lower initial target price, it does not necessarily lead to a lowest outturn cost. Under NEC4 
Option C, this will be based on the actual cost of the work (the defined cost), which is much 
more likely to be influenced by maximising the time available for Early Contractor 
Involvement (ECI), to provide efficiencies in the construction programme.  
 
Consideration should also be given to the extent of the mini competition scope; as it is 
envisioned that the initial scope would only include a detailed requirement for stage 1 (pre-
construction), and an outline for stage 2 (construction). The output from stage 1 would be a 

58

http://www.mhaweb.org.uk/work-streams/medium-schemes/early-contractor-involvement/
http://www.mhaweb.org.uk/work-streams/medium-schemes/early-contractor-involvement/


 

  
 

14 

programme forecast and price for the works (Target Price) for stage 2, and therefore the 
competitive nature of the mini competition would be for a relativity minor element of the 
whole Works.  
 
It is expected that it would take up to three months to conduct a mini competition.   
 
The current programme has a short construction period of 14 months for the Highway and 
Public Realm works, this assumes a DHLUC approves the extended completion date from 
March 2025 to July 2025. However, it should be noted that without a contractor on board, 
there is a high level of uncertainty on the construction timescales, and any delays in 
appointing the contractor, are likely to impact on completion date, or the cost if the 
completion date is fixed. 
 
 
 
 

5.6.2. Direct Call-Off  

The Client awards the works by selecting the contractor who is considered to be the most 
economically advantageous having regard to a particular Model Project or Projects3 and the 
quality criteria which are considered most relevant to the Scope.  
 
The Model Projects under consideration for the scheme are Scheme C- A158 Nettleham 
Roundabout Improvements and Scheme D- A38/BREP Scheme G. 
 
The Client may select either a single project or a number of projects which most closely 
align to the particular details of the scheme. If more than one Model Project is chosen, then 
each of the selected model projects is given a weighting percentage. The quality mark and 
price mark for each contractor will be added together, and the contractor with the highest 
overall mark will be issued with the instruction to provide a quotation in accordance with 
the quotation procedure.  If the contractor with the highest score is unavailable, then the 
Client may choose the next highest scoring contractor.  
 
The advantage of using the direct call-off approach at this stage in the MSF4 development, 
is that the contractor’s quality and price marks are relevant to today’s market, based and 
assessed against current Model Projects, with a much-reduced time frame compared to that 
of the mini competition. This would in effect allow the scheme to regain some of the time 
lost in receiving notification of the LUF funding and appointing the project team, and allow 
for a longer Early Contractor Involvement (ECI) phase of the scheme, which has been proven 
to reduce the overall price of the scheme. 
 

 
3 The MSF4 has four model projects Bardon Road, A40 access to Witney, A158 Nettleham Road Roundabout and the A38 / 
BREP Scheme G  
 
 

59



 

  
 

15 

The MSF4 allows for the Client to use an NEC4 Option C contract, with mature and well-
established risk allocations and transfer between parties; along with established tolerances 
to provide greater cost and programme certainty, with a pain/gain mechanism to incentivise 
contractor delivery against both programme and target cost.  
 

5.6.3. Sub-Regional Call-Off 

At the outset of the framework a contractor will be identified to deliver the works within a 
defined geographical area based on the demonstration of being the most economically 
advantageous in that area through a Model Project or Projects.  
 
DCC would be able to directly approach the sub-regional contractor (currently Galiford Tri) 
and issue an instruction to follow the quotation procedure. This may have the advantage of 
a much-simplified appointment mechanism, and a potential to reduce the overall cost 
through partnerships and longer-term relationships, however it is not to be seen as an 
automatic choice with deciding on a selection option. 
 
The main benefit of this route is the level of knowledge and experience the sub-regional 
contractor has of working with DCC and vice versa.  This includes knowledge of the County’s 
standard specification and processes and ways of working E.g. Traffic Management approval 
processes, TRO applications and timeframes.  The Contractor already has relationships with 
DCC internal teams such as Network Management.  This can add value through construction 
programme time savings when co-operation and approval is required by DCC teams, e.g.  
Permit applications during both the pre construction and construction phases.  
 
Due to the current relationship, DCC have a thorough understanding of the sub-regional 
contractors rates and the quality of their work.  They are aware of any issues arising on 
other projects and can act accordingly.  The wider DCC programme of work can also be used 
to incentivise the sub-regional contractor when contractual issues arise such as 
compensation events.  Essentially the sub-regional contractor is more invested in DCC as a 
client for the long term than another contractor may be and therefore, often more willing to 
share the project risk.  
 
A perceived risk of this approach is that the sub-regional contractor may not be as 
competitive.  This has not been the experience of DCC officers to date.  
 
6. Form of Contract 
 
DCC have advised that the preferred form of contract is NEC4 Option C, with secondary 
clause X22 when awarded.   
 
 
6.1. Incentivisation 
 
The NEC4 Option C contract allows for the Contractor to be incentivised through the 
pain/gain mechanism. A contractor’s share, more commonly referred to as the ‘pain/gain’ 
mechanism within NEC ECC Option C contracts, is a mechanism enabling the Contractor 

60



 

  
 

16 

(and/or the consultant team) to share the benefits of cost savings, but also to bear some of 
the cost when there are cost overruns. 
 
Cost savings and overruns are assessed against the total of the Prices (the target) and any 
subsequent changes to Scope and price during the works themselves, via the 
implementation of compensation events. At a framework level the contactors share is 
outlined in the below table.   
 

Share Range Contractor’s Share Percentage 

Less than 80% 30% 

From 80% to 100% 50% 
From 100% to 110% 50% 
Greater than 110% 100% 

 
Using the table above and the example of a project with a price set at £1m: 
 

- Contractor delivers works for £750k, an overall saving of £250k. 
- Contractor receives 30% of the saving which is below 80% of the total price (30% of 

£50k =  £15k) 
- Contractor receives 50% of the saving which is between 80 to 100% of the price (50% 

of £200k = £100k). 
- Therefore, although the works cost £750k, the total cost to the Client is £865k (£750k 

+ £15k + £100k).  The overall scheme saving therefore becomes £135k. 
 

This format is also applicable where costs overrun and are apportioned in line with the 
above table as below: 
 
 

-          Contractor delivers works for £1.2m, an overall pain of £200k. 
-          Contractor is liable for 50% of the first £100k (50% of £100K = 50K) 
-          Beyond that the Contractor is liable for all the pain beyond that first addition 10% so in this 

example.. 
-          Above £1.1m the contract pays the remainder or £100k in this example. 
-          Therefore, Total cost to client is £1,050,000.  
-          The contractor is liable for £150k and this will just come out of their profit Margin. 

 
A contractor would not usually sign up for any pain in the first 10% overrun of costs, usually their 
pain margin comes in after this.  This is only an example for the purposes of explaining how this can 
work.   
 
There will also be contractual obligations where further pain could be appointed to either party 
based on other NEC terms to be agreed at the contract negotiation stage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61



 

  
 

17 

 
 
 
 
6.2. Contract and Performance Management  
 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are in place as part of the MHA+ framework which apply 
to all projects and are reported into the Community Board.  This enables transparency 
around performance of all parties. 
 
 
6.3. Management of Contract Risk 
 
Contract risk is to be managed as part of the overall project risk management process.  
Contract risk is to be reviewed regularly by the Project Control Board, Steering group and 
Project Manager/Team. 
 
Gateways are to be established for review, and these are to be activity rather than time 
based i.e. dependent on progression through key milestones i.e. legal agreement, planning 
etc.  It is also envisaged that the project will be subject to Independent Gateway Reviews 
conducted by Local Partnerships at key stages including prior to ‘notice to progress to stage 
2’. 
 
 
6.4. Procurement Risk 
 
Use of the proposed MHA+ route will mitigate the majority of procurement risks in that DCC 
are proposing an established FTS and market compliant route to procurement that has been 
used successfully on a number of major projects by the County Council.  The MHA+ selection 
of contractors for the framework has/will have already completed financial and capacity 
checks as part of the approval process prior to contractors being added to the framework.  
Additionally, it is anticipated that, should a design and build route be preferred, this is likely 
to mitigate the majority of contract risk for the Client. 
 
7. Employer Responsibilities 
 
This section sets out which elements of the project sit outside the design and build contract. 
 
7.1. Reference Design (employer’s requirements) 
 
As identified above, in order for a contractor to provide any budget and programme 
information for the scheme, they require a Scope forming part of the contract NEC 4 ECC 
Option C, including any baseline information and any specific requirements the Client has to 
inform their proposals.  Upon entering into a design and build contract, the design 
responsibility sits firmly with the contractor and not the Client. 
 

62



 

  
 

18 

 
 
 
7.2. Planning Applications 
 
Outline designs have already been carried out, with Planning Applications being submitted 
for elements of the public realm including Shrovetide Walk and Millennium Square.  Both 
applications were approved by Derbyshire Dales District Council.  The exsiting planning 
consents are to be novated to DCC.  A further Planning Application and Listed building 
Consent is required. 
 
 
7.3. Land Assembly 
 
Land assembly and all associated legal agreements will be a Client responsibility.  Currently, 
no land acquisition is anticpated.  
 
7.4. Technical Assurance 
 
As the delivery lead, DCC will provide the technical assurance capability for the scheme. It is 
expected that the Contractor will be required to provide a programme4 of design 
submissions to allow DCC to manage their resources effectively. 
 
 
8. Professional Team Procurement 
 
8.1. Contracts placed to date 
 
No contracts have been placed to date for the delivery of the scheme, beyond professional 
support for the planning submission as shown in the table below: 
 
 

Organisation Purpose Framework 
Aecom Riba Design Stage 2/3  MHA+ PSP3 
BPM  Project and Cost Management  MHA+ PSP3 
   
   

 
Both of the above professional services were appointed through the MHA+ PSP3 extension.   
 
BPM were appointed originally by the District Council under a Waiver in accordance with 
Contract Standing Orders to support the development of the LUF2 Bid for the Ashbourne 
Reborn Programme. After the Funding Announcement was made and it had been agreed that 
the County Council would be the Lead Delivery Partner for the Highways and Public Realm 

 
4 This is usually in the form of a standalone Issue and Release Schedule (IRS), which is submitted with the 
Contractor’s Cl.32 programme 

63



 

  
 

19 

element, DCC appointed BPM (At Risk) via the MHA+ PSP3 Framework extension as a direct 
call off to ensure that the project could continue to progress as without this Project 
Management resource, DCC could not ensure that the funding milestones could be met.  This 
ensured project continuity as well as ensuring that BPM’s knowledge of the project, bid and 
all events and decisions already made, was not lost.  
 
Aecom were appointed via direct call off from the MHA+ PSP3 Framework extension by the 
County Council.  Aecom are the Regional Supplier under this lot and as such are the preferred 
supplier.   
 
As already set out above, the MHA+ Framework is a compliant framework and therefore 
accessible by the County Council.  It is used regulary by DCC and so the internal procurement 
process is accepted and as a result, an expedient route to appointment.  
DCC appointed Aecom as Designer to progress the scheme from Concept Design through to 
the end of Stage 3 design, concluding in submission of the planning application.  At the time 
of the appointment, the programme was in delay, in part due to a delay of the funding 
announcment of 3 months by DLUHC.  This meant that no further delay could be tolerated if 
the project was to stay on programme and subsequently achieve the funding milestones set 
out in the approved bid. 
 
From the three Designers available, Aecom were selected due to the County’s experience of 
working with them on other projects.  A key factor was officer experience of Aecom’s 
competence with highway and public realm design but also, critically, stakeholder and public 
engagement which will be the key to the success of this project.  
 
 
8.2. Future procurement appointments  

 
It is anticipated that due to a lack of suitable internal resources within DCC that there will be 
a requirement to utilise current frameworks to procure additional specialists. The table 
below identifies which external resources are anticipated being procured: 
 

Organisation Purpose Framework 
BPM Project Director and Project and 

Cost Management 
MHA+ PSP4 

Aecom  Design Stage 4  MHA+ PSP4 
 
Future contracting will be determined by whether a design or design and build approach is 
used. 
 
8.3. Procurement Monitoring   
 
All procurement is to be monitored using the register at Appendix 2 as required by DLUHC.  
This is to be completed for all procurement, including historic appointments by the District 
and County Councils and should be to be kept up to date and reviewed regularly.  This is to 
allow DDDC to provide this to DLUHC on demand / retain for audit purposes.   
 

64



 

  
 

20 

The register is also to be provided to DDDC quartlerly to allow the District to demonstrate 
due diligence as the Accountable Body for the LUF2 funding.   
 
 
 
9. Programme 
 
The procurement options have considered DCC’s key drivers of time and cost certainty for 
the scheme, and while a Design and Build contract provides this level of certainty, it must be 
noted that this level of assurance is only gained once the contractor has been appointed to 
provide the Works.  
 
A key consideration for time must be DLUHCs imposed scheme completion date of March 
2025. As previously mentioned the period for construction is 14 months (July 2025). There is 
a high level of uncertainty on this construction period until the contractor is engaged to 
provide forecasts for stages 1 and 2. It is therefore essential that the procurement strategy 
considers the most suitable option to engage a contractor at the earliest opportunity. This 
approach has been proven to accelerate the delivery and reduce costs by allowing the 
contractor to gain a greater understanding of the requirement, offer value engineering 
solutions, effectively plan resources, and manage risk more effectively. It is estimated that 
ECI has generated savings of over £26 million through MSF up to March 2018, and that the 
‘sooner a framework contractor is selected, the greater the potential savings’5.  
 
The project programme at Appendix 1 has, for the purposes of illustration, been developed 
using the MHA+ MSF framework utilising a Design and Build process.  Any delays in 
appointing a design and build contractor will have an adverse impact on the ability to 
engage the contractor under the Early Contractor Involvement process and will impact the 
design and approvals duration; ultimately impacting on the construction duration and the 
outturn costs.  
 
 
10. Conclusions and Recommendations 
 
We have considered the project requirements along with the options available for 
procurement and the associated forms of contract to arrive at a set of recommendations 
that should be considered by the Project Control Board.  The recommendations are set out 
below: 
 

- Adopt the strategy of using a direct call-off design and build contract utilising the 
MSF4 framework, and X22 ECI.  It is anticipated that the MSF4 ‘Model Projects’ 
which align closest to the Ashbourne Reborn scheme are scheme C – A158 
Nettleham Roundabout Improvements and scheme D - A38 BREP Scheme G which 
includes a public realm element. 

 
5 https://www.mhaplus.org.uk/work-streams/medium-schemes/early-contractor-involvement/ 
 

65

https://www.mhaplus.org.uk/work-streams/medium-schemes/early-contractor-involvement/


 

  
 

21 

- Develop suitable scoping documentation (design reference, including the MHA+ 
Annexes A and B) that can be used as the basis for the above appointment, 
documentation to be prepared in advance of the MSF4 framework appointment, and 
to include the requirements for stage 0/1 and outline requirements for stage 2, using 
NEC 4 X22.  

- It is our intention to use the MSF4 framework to engage a contractor for Ashbourne 
Reborn. The potential for social value benefits and enabling local sub-contractor 
supply chain opportunities will be considered within the specification for the works. 

  

66



Appendix 1 - Outline Programme  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



 

  
 

1 

Appendix 2 Levelling up Fund Procurement Register  
            
           
           
            
           
           
           

           
Important: The grant awarded to the Council is within the remit of public funding, therefore the Council is required to ensure any further disbursement of the grant to the likes of third parties (project partners, sub-grant partners, suppliers, contractors, etc) is done so in accordance with all applicable laws & regulations including public 
contracting regulations for the relevent nation, and where applicable UK subsidy control rules.  The Council must put in place adequate controls and checks where any procurements are being undertaken by a third party and not the Council,  and must at all times ensure rules are adhered to.  
We expect that at all times, all Grant Recipients to carry adequate due diligence in awarding contracts under this grant.  Councils must ensure all documentation relating to any contracts awarded, or expenditure funded by the grant is retained on file and these documents must be provided if requested by DLUHC as part of our project 
assurance and audit requirements.  
 
We expect Grant Recipients to have robust governance processes in place throughout to ensure that their agents, intermediaries, and sub-contractors, sub-grant partners also comply and adhere to professional and ethical standards, all other applicable laws and regulations including (but not limited to):   
• Anti-corruption  
• Fraud & Bribery 
• Money laundering  
Legally binding agreements must be in place clearly setting out key obligations, with robust terms & conditions to protect public funds and public funded assets.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              

The Council will need to complete and maintain this document with all completed and planned procurements for the lifetime of your Levelling Up Fund (LUF) project(s). The register will enable the DLUHC to gain an overview of all procurements for the Council's project(s) 
and will be used for sample testing during Deep Dives. 

A seperate LUF Procurement Register should be maintained for each LUF Project.

The Council will be required to provide a copy of this document when requested during a Deep Dive.
The Council and projects must demonstrate the correct application of public procurement principles and legislation for the appropriate nation, when awarding contracts/agreements funded by the grant and ensure value for money is considered throughout.

Levelling Up Fund Procurement Register Guidance

Levelling Up Fund Procurement Register- Completed Procurements

68



 

  
 

2 

 
  

              

              
              
 Grant Recipient enter here         
 Project Name enter here         
 Project Reference enter here         
              
 

             

              
 
 
 
 

Annex 1 Completed Procurements 
Please provide details of all 'completed procurements' for the  project which are 'above threshold'.                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

     

 No 
Contract 
reference 

or No 

Value of 
the 

contract 

Name 
of 

Supplier 

Description of 
works, supplies 
or services 
provided under 
the contract 

How was this 
contract procured? 

Where a procurement 
framework has been 
used, please provide 

details of the framework 
used. 

Who has led this 
procurement? 
 If a third party 
(and not the 

council) please 
advise 

How was the 
contract 
advertised? 

Is there a 
Contract Award 

notice?   
(Insert Hyperlink 

to Notice)  

Contract 
Commencement 

Date 

Contract 
Completion Date 

Does your organisation hold all the relevant 
procurement documents? (Y/N) 

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

              
              

 
 
 

Direct Award Contracts: Any direct awards must be logged with clear justification, outlining how this contract is exempt from the general principles of advertising and tendering contract opportunities. 
We expect full transparancy including details of contracts that the Council have awarded via a non-procurememt route. The Chief Finance Officer must sign and declare approval within the 
procurement documentation for any contracts award via this approach.  

 No 
Contract 
reference 

or No 

Value of 
Contract 

Name 
of 

Supplier 

Contract 
description  

Who is awarding 
and managing this 
contract? If a third 
party (and not the 

council) please 
advise 

Please provide reason 
for direct awarding  

Contract 
Commencement 

Date  

Contract End 
Date 

Is there a 
Contract Award 

notice?   
(Insert Hyperlink 

to Notice)  

Who is the contract or agreement 
with?  

Does your organisation hold all the relevant 
procurement documents? (Y/N) 

                         

                           

                           

                           

                           

                                                               
  

 

                                                               
                                                               
                                                               

Levelling Up Fund Procurement Register- Procurement Pipeline

69

applewebdata://b6ef903e-ceac-4dfa-b7e0-a67330938f6e/#RANGE!_ftn1
applewebdata://b6ef903e-ceac-4dfa-b7e0-a67330938f6e/#RANGE!_ftn1
applewebdata://b6ef903e-ceac-4dfa-b7e0-a67330938f6e/#RANGE!_ftn1


 

  
 

3 

 Grant Recipient enter here                                                          
 Project Name enter here                                                          
 Project Reference enter here                                                          

                                                               
                                                     
                                                     
                                                     
 

Annex 2: Procurement Pipeline  
Procurements which the Council is planning to undertake above contracting threshold 

                                                    
                                                     

 

N
o 

Anticipate
d value of 

the 
contract  

Description 
of goods, 
works, or 
services  

that will be 
provided 
under the 
contract 

Who is 
managing 

and leading 
this 

procurement
? 

 If a third 
party (and 

not the 
council) 
please 
advise 

What 
procureme
nt route do 
you intend 

to take 
(open, 

restricted)? 

Frameworks: 
Is the Council 
intending to 

use a 
procurement 
framework, if 
yes, which 

framework is  
intended for  
use and who 

owns the 
Framework  

(NB: the 
Council must 

ensure 
frameworks 
are active, 

and have not 
expired)  

Anticipated 
procurement 

commenceme
nt date  

Anticipate
d contract 

award 
date  

Where will 
the 

contract 
opportunit

y be 
advertised

? 

Anticipated contract 
completion date.  

                                                    

 
1                   

                                                    

 
2                   

                                                    

 
3                   

                                                    

 
4                   

                                                    

 
5                   

                                                    
  

 
                                                            

                                                               
                                                               

                                                     
                                                     

 

Direct Award Contracts: Any direct awards must be logged with clear justification outlining how this contract is 
exempt from the general principle of advertising and tendering contract opportunities. We expect full 
transparancy including details of contracts which the Council intend to award via a non-procurememt route.  The 
Chief Finance Officer must sign and declare their approval within the procurement documentation, for any 
contracts to be awarded via this approach.                                                      

 

N
o 

Anticipate
d value of 

the 
contract  

Contract 
description  

Who is 
awarding 

and 
managing 

this 
contract. If a 
third party 

(and not the 
council) 
please 
advise 

Please 
provide 

reason for 
direct 

awarding  

Contract 
commenceme

nt date  

Contract end 
date 

Who is 
the 

contract 
or 

agreemen
t with?  

Is there a Contract Award notice?   
(Insert Hyperlink to Notice)  

                                                    
 1                                                                     
 2                                                                     

70



 

  
 

4 

 3                                                                     
 4                                                                     
 5                                                                     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                        

 

71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Appendix 9 – Programme and Project Risks 

Top 10 Strategic Programme Risks 

 Risk Title Short description Consequences Mitigation Post-
mitigati
on score 

1 Project costs Project costs exceed budget Inability to deliver all aspects of projects with 
potential shortfall in outputs and reputational 
damage 

Early Contractor Involvement; Value 
engineering; re-scoping 

8 

2 Material and contractor 
availability 

Lack of contractor interest or 
shortage of materials 

Pressure on costs and/or delays to delivery Early engagement with market; 
procurement strategy 

3 

3 Funding profile (updated in 
Q1 to reflect required 
timeframe) 

Failure to spend LUF grant within 
required LUF timeframe 

Lack of compliance with grant conditions; potential 
withholding of funding and inability to complete 
projects; reputational damage 

Formal change request; backload 
match funding 

6 

4 Disruption  Main works cause disproportionate 
disruption 

Reduced trade for town centre businesses; increased 
journey times; reputational damage 

Engagement with key stakeholders; 
phasing and traffic management 
strategies 

8 

5 Safety Site works cause accident Injury or death; reputational damage; investigation 
and project delay 

Procurement checks; site 
management 

6 

6 Stakeholder expectations 
(updated in Q1 to increase 
pre-mitigated impact) 

Programme falls short of 
expectations 

Shortfall in outcomes/benefits; reputational damage Expectation management; early 
stakeholder engagement; quality 
control 

8 

7 Ineligible spend Grant paid for ineligible spend Withholding of funds; reputational damage; criminal 
investigation 

Multiple lines of defence; project 
management procurement 

3 

8 Site unknowns Unexpected site conditions cause 
delay/cost rise 

Delay to works on sites and/or rising costs to carry 
out extra work/studies 

Comprehensive surveys pre-works; 
use of contingency 

3 

9 Funding agreements Failure to agree timely formal 
agreements 

Delay to projects; reputational damage Collaboration with delivery partners; 
letters of intent to allow work at risk 

8 

10 Project and programme 
resources 

Failure to put in place project and 
programme management 

Delay to projects; lack of planning; reputational 
damage 

Recruitment; alternative s/term 
appointments 

8 

 

 

 

 

 

73



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Highways and Public Realm Project top ten risks August 2023 

 
 

A Risk Review for the Link Community Hub Project will follow for reporting at the next Programme Board. 

Risk ID Entry By Risk  Title Risk Notes Date Raised Probability 
Score

Impact 
Score Project Risk Mitigation Measures Ownership Mitigated 

Probability
Mitigated 

Impact
Mitigated 

Risk Status
Last 

Review 
Date

Date 
Closed Comments 

SC01 Bid RR No existing utility 
Information/Surveys 

Surveys and drawings may have missing/missed existing 
or decommissioned services 2.7.22 4 4 16

Early engagement with utility providers to undertake site 
surveys (GPR survey undertaken). Current design 

dictates that depth of construction does not extend to the 
levels where existing services may be struck

Design Team 3 3 9 Open 23.3.23

F008 Workshop Failing to meet funding milestones Not spending the grant within the agreed timeframes 
March 2025 23.3.23 4 4 16

Proactive programme management. Recognising 
opportunities to reduce time periods on the critical path. 

Front loading LUF spend 
District and County 3 4 12 Open 

23.3.23
to be updated once cost 
plan is ready (oct 23)

CR005 Bid RR Availability of materials 
The procurement process becomes protracted and 

absorbs critical construction time resulting in delays to the 
programme 

2.7.22 4 4 16
Clear project delivery programme with key milestones 

and resource tracking 3 3 9 Open 2.7.22

Pr002 Bid RR Minimising disruption to town centre Need to manage stakeholder expectations on programme 
- overpromising leads to lack of confidence 2.7.22 4 4 16

Early engagement with local businesses. Implement a 
well considered communication strategy. Early 

engagement with Highways Authority for diversion routes.  County Council 3 3 9 Open 23.3.23

Pr003 Workshop Impact of traffic management 
restrictions

There will be localised issues with businesses, offices, 
residents - with noise and disruption complaints 2.7.22 4 5 20

Early engagement with key stakeholders and develop a 
scope for the public realm.  Agree design of the technical 

specification at an early stage 
County Council 3 5 15 Open 9.8.23

Pr005 Workshop
Phasing of the construction stage to 

minimise disruption - prolongs 
programme 

There will be localised issues with businesses, offices, 
residents - with noise and disruption complaints 2.7.22 4 5 20

Appoint a competent ECI contractor that understands the 
projects aims and objectives and is realistic and 

undertakes regular stakeholder engagement to minimise 
disruption

County Council 3 5 15 Open 23.3.23

TPR003 Bid RR Trader disruptions due to highway schemeDisruption to trader access due to the highway scheme 
limiting access to the town centre and highway corridor 2.7.22 4 5 20

Communication strategy to be devised to address the 
pre contract and post contract works.  Co-ordination of 

phasing the works to mitigate disruption.  Individual 
mitigations to be developed to key areas.

County Council 3 4 12 Open 23.3.23

OTR002 Bid RR
Poor stakeholder engagement 
leads to reputational risks for 

DDDC

Opposition from traders, lack of communication of the 
scheme and its benefits 2.7.22 4 4 16

Ensure buy in from all key partners at the early design 
stages.  Early engagement with key stakeholders and 

review requirement for additional comms resource and 
develop the design for the public realm. Regular review of 

stakeholder management strategy. 

District and County 3 3 9 Open 23.3.23

OTR008 Workshop Impact of Shrovetide Event after 
project completion 

Shrovetide Walk newly installed street trees and other 
vulnerable elements are damaged after the Shrovetide  

event resulting in an increased maintenance cost 3.8.23 4 4 16

Material selection to be based in longevity. Young trees 
are protected for the first 3years, method of protection to 
be recorded in the Management Plan. Shrovetide Event 
organisers to consider how they can increase support to 
protect the newly installed street assets and public realm 

works post project completion

Project Control Board 3 4 12 Open 9.8.23

OT9009 Workshop Heritage/Archaeological Impact 
Two paving surfaces on Market Place/Victoria Sq. Will 

lead to more expensive and time-consuming 
excavation/reinstatement works in these locations. 

9.8.23 4 4 16

Pre-app engagement with DCC's Archaeologist and 
LBC. Use previous GPR Surveys, Historical Plans and 

Data to inform the ECI when developing the Construction 
Programme. Construction Methodology to include a 
Archaeologist watching brief during excavation and 

reinstatement of paving. 

Project Control Board 4 3 12 Open 9.8.23

RES01 Bid RR Insufficient project resource Inadequate project or client resources to effectively 
manage or deliver the project 2.7.22 4 4 16 Project delivery to be put in place to identify and source 

resource requirements District and County 3 3 9 Open 23.3.23

74



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Appendix 10 – Delivery Plan Milestones 

 

Highways and Public Realm Delivery Plan as reported to Government, July 2023: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Link Community Hub Delivery Plan as reported to Government, July 2023: 

 

76



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

Appendix 11 -  Funding Profiles 

Table 1 - Initial funding profile January 2023 

 
 

Table 2 - Indicative funding profile submitted to DLUHC July 2023 

 

 
 

 

Grand Total
Q4 (Jan-Mar) Total Q1 (Apr-Jun) Q2 (Jul-Sept) Q3 (Oct-Dec) Q4 (Jan-Mar) Total Q1 (Apr-Jun) Q2 (Jul-Sept) Q3 (Oct-Dec) Q4 (Jan-Mar) Total Q1 (Apr-Jun) Q2 (Jul-Sept) Q3 (Oct-Dec) Q4 (Jan-Mar) Total

LUF £105,795.98 £105,795.98 £26,920.09 £407,197.14 £428,578.53 £660,389.77 £1,523,085.53 £1,596,860.57 £3,025,147.12 £3,060,484.22 £2,536,902.96 £10,219,394.87 £1,525,232.83 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,525,232.83 £13,373,509.21
LUF contractually committed £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £297,256.60 £0.00 £0.00 £297,256.60 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £297,256.60
Cumulative - LUF Project Related Expenditure£105,795.98 £105,795.98 £132,716.07 £539,913.21 £968,491.74 £1,628,881.51 £1,628,881.51 £3,225,742.08 £6,250,889.20 £9,311,373.42 £11,848,276.38 £11,848,276.38 £13,373,509.21 £13,373,509.21 £13,373,509.21 £13,373,509.21 £13,373,509.21 £13,373,509.21
Match
Derbyshire CC on H&PR £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £250,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £250,000.00 £250,000.00
Derbyshire Dales DC £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £40,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £40,000.00 £40,000.00
Ashbourne Town Council £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £8,717.90 £55,682.10 £0.00 £0.00 £64,400.00 £64,400.00
AshCom £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £48,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £48,000.00 £48,000.00
Derbyshire CC on LCH £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £38,750.00 £38,750.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £38,750.00
Ashbourne Methodist Church £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £642,000.00 £642,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £642,000.00
Ashbourne Methodist Church £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £65,174.48 £65,174.48 £626,548.56 £54,275.96 £20,000.00 £0.00 £700,824.52 £765,999.00
Match total £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £745,924.48 £745,924.48 £675,266.46 £407,958.06 £20,000.00 £0.00 £1,103,224.52 £1,849,149.00
Total LUF + Match £105,795.98 £105,795.98 £26,920.09 £407,197.14 £428,578.53 £660,389.77 £1,523,085.53 £1,596,860.57 £3,025,147.12 £3,060,484.22 £3,282,827.44 £10,965,319.35 £2,200,499.29 £407,958.06 £20,000.00 £0.00 £2,628,457.35 £15,222,658.21
Cumulative Total LUF + Match £105,795.98 £105,795.98 £132,716.07 £539,913.21 £968,491.74 £1,628,881.51 £1,628,881.51 £3,225,742.08 £6,250,889.20 £9,311,373.42 £12,594,200.86 £12,594,200.86 £14,794,700.15 £15,202,658.21 £15,222,658.21 £15,222,658.21 £15,222,658.21 £15,222,658.21

Financial Year 22/23 (actual)Financial Year 2023/24 (forecast) Financial Year 2024/25 (forecast) Financial Year 2025/26 (forecast)

77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 

                                  
 

OPEN REPORT 
ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME BOARD 

 
Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board 27 September 2023 
 
ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME – ADDITIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT CAPACITY 
 
Joint report of the Regeneration and Place Manager, Derbyshire Dales District 
Council and Assistant Director Regeneration and Major Projects, Derbyshire 
County Council 
 
Report Authors and Contact Details 
Giles Dann, Regeneration and Place Manager Derbyshire Dales District Council 
01629 761211 or giles.dann@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 
Jim Seymour, Assistant Director Regeneration and Major Projects, Derbyshire 
County Council 01629 538557or jim.seymour@derbyshire.gov.uk 
 
Report Summary 
To consider the establishment of an additional fixed term post of Communications 
Officer within the District Council’s Communications and Marketing Team to deliver 
the Communications and Engagement Plan for the Ashbourne Reborn programme 
and endorse the immediate approach taken to securing short term interim capacity. 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That Board members endorse the action taken to secure interim 
communications support from Aecom for the Ashbourne Reborn programme.  
 

2. That, at its meeting of 28/09/23, funding provision be sought from the District 
Council’s General Reserve to enable the establishment of an Ashbourne 
Reborn Communications Officer post on a fixed-term basis for a period of two-
years subject to further engagement with each project board regarding the 
working arrangements for the role. 

 
3. That Board members note the intention of Derbyshire County Council to ensure 

additional communication and stakeholder engagement relating to other 
highways and transport work taking place in Ashbourne during the preparation 
and delivery of Ashbourne Reborn.  

 
List of Appendices 
APPENDIX 1 – Ashbourne Reborn Communications and Engagement Plan (May 
2023) 
 

79

Agenda Item 6

mailto:giles.dann@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
mailto:jim.seymour@derbyshire.gov.uk


2 
 

 
ASHBOURNE REBORN PROGRAMME – ADDITIONAL COMMUNICATIONS 
AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT CAPACITY 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The successful £15.22m Ashbourne Reborn programme bid was developed 

through close working between local partners who brought forward project 
ideas, identified opportunities and raised match-funding. The key partners 
include Derbyshire Dales District Council, Derbyshire County Council, 
Ashbourne Town Team, Ashbourne Methodist Church, Ashbourne Town 
Council, and Ashcom. 
 

1.2 The programme comprises the following projects: 
 

Project 1: Public Realm & Highways Improvements - £8.804m led by 
Derbyshire County Council.  
 

Project 2: Link Community Hub - £6.418m led by Ashbourne Methodist 
Church. 
 

1.3 Derbyshire Dales District Council is the Accountable Body for the 
Ashbourne Reborn programme.  
 

1.4 On 27 July 2023 the District Council approved revised governance 
arrangements for Ashbourne Reborn, including increased Member 
involvement from both the District Council and County Council.  The first 
meeting of the new programme Board is scheduled for 27 September 2023. 
 

1.5 Over recent months, partners have worked collaboratively to progress both 
projects, including: 
 

• Summer stakeholder and public engagement events, particularly to 
inform the highways and public realm design 

• Submission of the Listed Building Consent application for works to 
Market Place and Victoria Square 

• Completion of draft RIBA Stage 3 designs / work package for the 
wider highways and public realm project 

• Appointment of the full Link Community Hub Design Team (architect, 
structural and services engineers, landscape architect etc.) to 
complete detailed design; all required surveys and engineers 
inspections of the site condition, including trial pits, underway 

• Completion of branding competition with QEGS students and issue of 
final programme logo. 

 
1.6 The next stage for both projects is to progress detailed design followed by 

contractor procurement. 
 
2. Key Issues 
 
2.1 Under the original programme governance arrangements, a 

Communications and Engagement Plan was agreed which requires 
proactive communications throughout the period of the programme.  
 

80



3 
 

2.2 An officer Communications and Engagement Group has been established to 
lead on developing and delivering effective communications and engagement 
activity. The group is chaired by the Ashbourne Reborn Programme Manager 
with communication leads from: 

 

• Derbyshire Dales District Council 
• Derbyshire County Council 
• Ashbourne Town Council 
• Ashbourne Methodist Church 
• Ashbourne Town Team 
• AshCom 

2.3 The group has responsibility for operational decisions about communication 
and engagement activity and meets approx. every six-weeks (more frequently 
if required). The group is tasked with working closely with the two project boards 
to ensure alignment of messages and support those boards in their 
communication and engagement work. It will produce an updated plan for 
consideration by the Programme Board and work with the programme manager 
to produce regular updates for this Board. 
 

2.4 The communications and engagement group is responsible at the programme 
level for: 
 

• Maintaining the communications protocol 

• Developing and overseeing delivery of regular, scheduled communications 
(e-newsletter updates, social media posts, press releases etc.) 

• Ensuring audiences are aware of opportunities for project level 
engagement 

• Establishing priorities for engagement at the programme level and ensuring 
stakeholder relationships are being managed effectively 

• Supporting the delivery of set-piece events including public engagement 
events and Ministerial visits. 

 At the project level, the group’s role is to: 

• Work with project boards to develop a schedule of communications 
opportunities linked to project milestones 

• Ensure that delivery partner channels and opportunities are linked to and 
aligned with programme level communications  

• Commission stakeholder analysis so each project board can identify key 
stakeholders for each phase of project delivery and plan engagement at the 
earliest stage 

• Utilise programme stakeholders to support project level activity and mitigate 
project risks. 

2.5 To date, communications and stakeholder engagement has been 
undertaken by the District Council’s existing Communications and Marketing 
Team working collaboratively with Derbyshire County Council, the Town 
Team and other local partners, drawing on existing communications 
resources. In addition, Aecom, the consultancy commissioned to develop 
the highways and public realm design, have provided time-limited 

81



4 
 

stakeholder and public engagement support to inform the RIBA Stage 3 
preliminary design.  
 

2.6 As plans have developed over the Summer, it has become increasingly clear 
that the scale and pace of the Ashbourne Reborn programme, extent of local 
interest and breadth of stakeholders involved necessitates a dedicated 
resource at programme level to increase proactive communication and 
engagement activity, including to: 
 
• Prepare continuous, proactive co-ordinated messaging in respect of 

forthcoming programme activity and linked stories through a range of 
communications channels, including social media 

• Publish up to a weekly/fortnightly newsletter (on-line pdf and paper for 
noticeboards via Ashbourne Town Team, Ashbourne Town Council, 
Ashbourne Methodist Church etc.) 

• Publish up to a weekly/fortnightly press release to provide media 
organisations with opportunities to draft content for the publications 

• Generating content (following up on leads from the Programme 
Manager/lead delivery partners/wider partners, i.e. not waiting for 
content to come but proactively creating content) for the above 
communications channels 

• Organise further local engagement events as required 
• Liaise with the councils and the other key partners to ensure existing 

communications channels and partner networks are fully exploited 
• Develop productive working relationships with local journalists 
• Ensure consistent (compliant) LUF / Government / local branding of all 

physical signage, information and visual materials relating to the 
programme (including but not limited to banners, site hoardings, 
interpretation boards) 

• Build connections / relationships with key stakeholders to ensure their 
views are considered and any emerging issues are well managed 

• Ensure effective communication of traffic management measures and 
phasing of works is disseminated to keep local businesses, residents 
and visitors informed and up to date before and during the construction 
phase. It is important to recognise, though, that on matters such as 
disruption to businesses during construction the contractor must, and 
will, carry direct responsibility for liaison with the owners and occupiers 
of affected properties 

• Mitigating risks, including reputational risks, to the delivery of the 
Ashbourne Reborn programme through stakeholder communication, 
issues management, myth-busting and working to minimise any adverse 
publicity 

• Regularly monitor and report on the outcomes of communication and 
stakeholder engagement activity. 

 
2.7 The above would form the basis of the work programme for the additional 

resource (see following section). The resource will also be responsible for 
updating the Communications and Engagement Plan and ensuring sign-off 
of this and significant announcements by the Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Programme Board and respective Project Boards.  
 

2.8 Attendance at programme and project board meetings will be important to 
ensure an up to date understanding of progress, for key messaging / PR to 

82



5 
 

be agreed and actioned and to avoid the potential for misinformation. The 
post will also be responsible for any requirements to share communications 
with DLUHC. 

 
3. Options Considered and Proposal 
 
3.1 The aspiration is for a high standard of communications and engagement to 

be maintained for the lifetime of the programme. Three options have been 
considered:  
 
Option 1: secure dedicated time from within existing council 
communications resources. 
 
Option 2: directly employ a new temporary member of staff for the lifetime 
of the programme i.e. a fixed term post for up to two years.  
 
Option 3 commission a communications agency / consultancy to undertake 
the role for the lifetime of the programme i.e. up to 2 years with additional 
time / inputs ahead of and during the construction phase. 
 

3.2 After reviewing available capacity with both the district and county councils, 
it is considered that the establishment of an additional, dedicated 
communications and engagement resource is necessary to meet the 
requirements of the programme. Consequently Option 1 is ruled out. 
 

3.3 Option 2 requires recruitment to a post and therefore lead-in time prior to an 
appointment being made. Recruitment to a temporary post could also be 
challenging in the current climate. 
 

3.4 Option 3 potentially provides a more immediate solution to address capacity 
issues but is likely to prove more expensive over the longer term. 
 

3.5 On balance, pursuing Options 2 and 3 in tandem is considered appropriate, 
specifically to: 
 

• seek the required funding allocation to enable the establishment of 
an additional Communications Officer post at the District Council on 
Grade 8 (the same grade as the existing Communications Officer 
post) for a fixed period of two-years. This approach seeks to provide 
an increased level of resource to support the Ashbourne Reborn 
programme. Further engagement is required with each project board 
regarding the working arrangements for the role. This can be included 
on the agendas of the project board meetings due to be held on 3 
October. 

• commission Aecom, currently contracted on Ashbourne Reborn 
through Derbyshire County Council, to provide interim 
communications support to the programme, reporting to the 
Communications and Engagement Group. A proposal has been 
received from Aecom and agreed by senior officers from the two 
councils.  

 

83



6 
 

3.6 Should the appointment of a fixed term post prove challenging, 
consideration will be given to the procurement of external consultancy / 
agency support in the longer term. 
 

3.7 In addition, there will be a need to ensure that key stakeholders and the 
general public are informed on the interface between the LUF/partner 
funded Ashbourne Reborn programme and other works in the town such as 
those under the Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP). The County Council 
recognises that this broader communications work extends beyond the 
scope of Ashbourne Reborn, and it will use in-house and/or separately 
procured external communications support to provide capacity. This will 
ensure that stakeholders have a complete picture of the progress of all 
schemes proposed for the town. This should also include effective 
communications and engagement to help mitigate the protraction of TRO 
processes.  Moving forward, it will be important for this resource to work 
closely with the Ashbourne Reborn Communications Officer.  

 
4. Consultation 
 
4.1 Consultation has taken place with the District Council’s Leader and Deputy 

Leaders who are supportive and recognise the importance of effective 
communications and engagement for the programme.  

 
4.2 County Council officers will manage the contract with Aecom for the 

additional interim services required. 
 
5. Timetable for Implementation 
 
5.1 The proposed establishment of an additional resource has been approved 

by the District Council’s Corporate Leadership Team and it is proposed that 
funding will be formally sought at full Council on 28 September 2023 with a 
view to allocating the necessary funding to enable the establishment of a 
post. 
 

5.2 The additional interim Aecom resource has been agreed and immediate 
capacity is available. 

 
6. Policy Implications 
 
6.1 Delivery of Ashbourne Reborn is an agreed regeneration priority for both 

councils. An effective approach to communications and engagement is vital 
to the successful delivery of the programme. 

 
7. Resources (Finance, HR, Estates and IT) Implications 

 
7.1 The anticipated cost of a Grade 8 Communications Officer is approximately 

£44,000 per annum (including on costs; at top of grade). For the two-year 
period of the fixed term contract this would total £88,000. It is proposed that 
this sum be met from the District Council’s General Reserve, subject to the 
approval of this report and of full Council on 28 September 2023.  

 
7.2 The core (interim) service from Aecom has been costed at £5,793 for 3 

months (£7,724 for 4 months), again to be met from the District Council’s 

84



7 
 

General Reserve subject to the approval of this report and of full Council on 
28 September 2023.  

 
7.3 Communication of the wider works package for Ashbourne complementing 

Ashbourne Reborn will be funded by the County Council. 
 
8. Legal Advice and Implications, Data Protection 

 
8.1 The Aecom interim communications support will be managed as a 

compensation event under the existing contract with Derbyshire County 
Council. There are no further legal or data protection implications 
associated with this proposal.  

 
9. Equalities Implications 
 
9.1 There are no equalities implications associated with this proposal. 

 
10. Climate Change and Biodiversity Implications 
 
10.1 There are no climate change or biodiversity implications associated with this 

proposal beyond the travel of the required resource. 
 

11. Risk Management 
 
11.1 The proposed establishment of an additional Communications Officer post 

is itself a mitigation against the risks identified earlier in the report in respect 
of demonstrating the progress being made in the delivery of the Ashbourne 
Reborn programme and ensuring effective stakeholder engagement.  

85



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board Update
	Appendix 1 Ashbourne Reborn Governance Structure
	Appendix 2 Ashbourne Reborn Programme Board Terms of Reference
	Appendix 3 - Draft Protocol for Escalating Ashbourne Reborn Decisions
	Appendix 4 - Schedule of Activity to date
	Appendix 5 - Draft Minutes AR link Community Hub Project Board Sept 23
	Appendix 6 - Ashbourne Reborn Programme Control Board Minutes Sept 23
	Appendix 7 - Designs
	ASHREB-ACM-HGN-GEN-DR-CH-0100009 Buxton Rd
	ASHREB-ACM-HGN-GEN-DR-CH-0100010 Church
	ASHREB-ACM-HGN-GEN-DR-CH-0100011 Station
	ASHREB-ACM-HGN-GEN-DR-CH-0100012 Dig St (2)
	ASHREB-ACM-HGN-GEN-DR-CH-0100013 Shawcroft
	Market Place and Victoia square layout
	Sheets and Views
	007



	Appendix 8 - Ashbourne Reborn Highways and Public Realm Procurement Strategy - 0823
	1.	Executive Summary
	2.	Introduction
	2.1.	Background
	2.2.	Report Purpose
	3.	Phasing and Programme Constraints
	3.1.	LUF Funding Drawdown Deadline
	3.2.	Duration and Commencement
	4.	Choice of Contract
	5.	Procurement Options and Associated Forms of Contract
	5.1.	Procurement Options Considered
	6.	Form of Contract
	6.1.	Incentivisation
	6.2.	Contract and Performance Management
	6.3.	Management of Contract Risk
	6.4.	Procurement Risk
	7.	Employer Responsibilities
	7.1.	Reference Design (employer’s requirements)
	7.2.	Planning Applications
	7.3.	Land Assembly
	7.4.	Technical Assurance
	8.	Professional Team Procurement
	8.1.	Contracts placed to date
	8.2.	Future procurement appointments
	8.3.	Procurement Monitoring
	9.	Programme
	10.	Conclusions and Recommendations
	Appendix 1 - Outline Programme
	Appendix 2 Levelling up Fund Procurement Register

	Appendix 9 - Programme and Project Risks
	Appendix 10 - Delivery Plan Milestones
	Appendix 11 - Funding Profile

	6 Ashbourne Reborn Programme - Additional Communications and Stakeholder Engagement Capacity

